
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD A
MEETING AT THE GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE, BOARD OF  SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400
EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE
MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV).  THE
MEETING IS ALSO TELEVISED TO THE GILA COUNTY COMPLEX, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS'
CONFERENCE ROOM, 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, PAYSON, ARIZONA.  

NOTE:  Per the most recent guidelines from the federal government that no more than 10
people should be gathered in a room at the same time, no citizens will be allowed in the
Board of Supervisors' hearing room at the Globe Courthouse or at the County Complex, Board
of Supervisors' conference room in Payson.

Citizens may watch the Board meeting live-streamed at:  
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live

Citizens may submit comments related to the June 2, 2020 Regular Meeting by no later than
5 p.m. on Monday, June 1, by emailing to the Clerk of the Board at
msheppard@gilacountyaz.gov or calling 928-402-8757.  Please include the meeting date and
agenda item number in the email.

THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, JUNE 2, 2020 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -

INVOCATION
 

 

2. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Sheriff's
Office electronic submission of a grant application to
Arizona State Parks and Trails in the amount of $29,921.97
with an in-kind match of $1,600 for a total project cost
$31,521.97 for the purchase of a 2020 Polaris Ranger Crew
1000 with associated equipment to assist in law
enforcement and education patrols throughout Gila County. 
(Sarah White/Gary Morris)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Superior
Court's submission of the fiscal year 2021 Field Trainer
Grant Application to the Court Services Division,
Administrative Office of the Courts, in the amount of
$25,000. (Jon Bearup)

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live


 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
20-06-01 accepting grants of roadway deeds for Turner Hill
Road in Young, Arizona; establishing the road as a primitive
road; accepting it into the Gila County Primitive Roads
System; and authorizing the execution of the Primitive Road
Easement.  (Steve Sanders)

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Contract No.
040320-A to ATOZEN, LLC DBA Sanders Transport in the
amount of $45,000, and Contract No. 040320-B to Lamont
Mortuary of Globe in the amount of $25,000 for the
provision of autopsy transport services. (Mary Springer)

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the
advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 050420 - 
Pharmacy Services for Gila County Detention Medical for a
contractor to provide prescription and over-the-counter
medications for inmates in the Gila County Jail. (Mary
Springer/Sarah White)

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the submission
of a letter to the United States Fish and Wildlife Service
regarding the proposed Draft Environmental Impact
Statement Supplement, in conjunction with a proposed rule
to revise the existing nonessential experimental population
designation of the Mexican wolf under section 10(j) of the
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended. (Jacque
Sanders)

 

3. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the
Consent Agenda will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any member of the
Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application



A.   Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application
submitted by the Pleasant Valley Community Council,
Inc. for an event to be held on July 17, 2020, July 18,
2020, and July 19, 2020, at the Pleasant Valley Community
Center located in Young.

 

B.   Approval of the Board of Supervisors' May 12, 2020 and
May 19, 2020 meeting minutes.

 

C.   Acknowledgment of the April 2020 monthly activity report
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

 

D.   Acknowledgment of the April 2020 monthly activity report
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

 

E.   Acknowledgment of the April 2020 monthly activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

 

F.   Acknowledgment of the April 2020 monthly activity report
submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's
Office.

 

G.   Acknowledgment of the April 2020 monthly activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's
Office.

 

H.   Acknowledgment of the April 2020 monthly activity report
submitted by the Recorder's Office.

 

4. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   A call to the public is held for
public benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of
Supervisors on any issue within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda.
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute
§38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call to the
public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may

 



respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the
Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and
decision at a future date.

 

5. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and
the County Manager may present a brief summary of
current events.  No action may be taken on information
presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING.



   
ARF-6062   Regular Agenda Item     2. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/02/2020  
Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY 2020 Budgeted?: No
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

FY2020-2021 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
AZ State Parks and Trails OHV Law Enforcement Equipment Gila County
Sheriff's Office Grant Application.

Background Information
Gila County is 4,795 square miles with approximately 4% of it consisting
of private property. There are more then a thousand miles of Forest
Service roads and off-highway vehicle trails. Each weekend from spring
through fall, the County experiences a wave of visitors who bring large
numbers of off highway vehicles (OHV). Many of the Forest Service roads
can only be accessed by an OHV to conduct law enforcement and
education patrols. This boom in Countywide visitors has placed an
increased burden on the Gila County Sheriff's Office to conduct patrols
and law enforcement operations throughout the County.

Evaluation
If a grant is awarded to the Gila County Sheriff's Office, the funding will
be utilized to purchase a 2020 Polaris Ranger 1000, 4-wheel drive OHV,
enclosure, transport trailer, winch, police equipment and mobile radio to
assist in law enforcement and education patrols throughout Gila County.

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office is requesting funding from the Arizona



The Gila County Sheriff's Office is requesting funding from the Arizona
State Parks and Trails in the amount of $29,921.97 with an in-kind
match of $1,600 for a total project cost $31,521.97 for the purchase of a
2020 Polaris Ranger Crew 1000, 4 wheel drive and associated equipment
to assist with law enforcement and education patrols throughout Gila
County.

Recommendation
Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve the electronic submission of a grant application to
the Arizona State Parks and Trails on May 15, 2020, in the amount of
$29,921.97 with an in-kind match of $1,600 total project cost $31,521.97.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Sheriff's Office electronic
submission of a grant application to Arizona State Parks and Trails in the
amount of $29,921.97 with an in-kind match of $1,600 for a total project
cost $31,521.97 for the purchase of a 2020 Polaris Ranger Crew 1000
with associated equipment to assist in law enforcement and education
patrols throughout Gila County. (Sarah White/Gary Morris)

Attachments
Grant Application 
Application submitted email
Road Condition Photos
Letters of support 



















































   
ARF-6050   Regular Agenda Item     2. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/02/2020  
Submitted For: Jonathan Bearup, Court Administrator 
Submitted By: Jonathan Bearup, Court Administrator
Department: Superior Court Division: Superior Court Administration

Information
Request/Subject
The Superior Court is requesting the Board of Supervisors' approval on its
Fiscal Year 2021 Field Trainer Grant Application.

Background Information
The Field Trainer program is a cooperative endeavor between the
Administrative Office of the Courts ("AOC") and County trial courts. A
Field Trainer is a full time, a co-funded position designed to provide field
support and training to various courts. The Field Trainer acts as a liaison
with the AOC and delivers specific pertinent information to court
managers and staff about forthcoming automation initiatives and projects.

Evaluation
The Gila County courts, at all levels, continue to experience the
introduction of important and intensive automation projects. The AOC
recently launched “AZPOINT”, a new platform for the filing of protective
orders. Additionally, the “eFiling” system has been expanded out to
additional case types greatly increasing the capacity for digital document
filings. The corresponding component, “eBench” has similarly been
expanded. The Superior Court believes that a Field Trainer will greatly
assist with diffusing the necessary knowledge and conducting the
appropriate training to ensure the successful implementation of these
items. Additionally, the Field Trainer serves as the County (Courts’)
Training Coordinator and is responsible for presenting training
opportunities for all staff to comply with the continuing judicial education
mandate, “COJET”. Lastly, the Filed Trainer also serves as a conduit to
provide feedback and requests for assistance to the State-level.

The AOC provides $25,000 of funding for salary and ERE of the position
and the position has been incorporated into the Courts’ Coordinated
Budget since FY2018. Due to the retirement of the incumbent Field
Trainer, and the hiring of a new Field Trainer, the County’s contribution



will be approximately $4,000 less than in previous years.

Conclusion
Given the ongoing automation demands of the courts, the Superior Court
would like to continue the position of Field Trainer to coordinate training
and support.

Recommendation
The Superior Court recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
the fiscal year 2021 Field Trainer Grant Application that will be submitted
to the Court Services Division, AOC.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Superior Court's
submission of the fiscal year 2021 Field Trainer Grant Application to the
Court Services Division, Administrative Office of the Courts, in the
amount of $25,000. (Jon Bearup)

Attachments
FY21 Field Trainer Application











   
ARF-6063   Regular Agenda Item     2. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/02/2020  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst.
Department: Public Works

Information
Request/Subject
Adopt Resolution No. 20-06-01 designating Turner Hill Road in Young,
Arizona, as a primitive road.

Background Information
Turner Hill Road begins at SR 288 and at the west boundary of parcel
305-26-002D as a primitive road. The road is in the community of Young.

Evaluation
Turner Hill Road meets the requirements of Public Works Policy No.
PWS-001 “Guidelines to Primitive Roads” which was approved by the
Board of Supervisors on Oct. 3, 2003, revised on December 1, 2004, and
revised again on February 19, 2019.

Conclusion
Easements from property owners will need to be granted to Gila County.
Once the easements are accepted by the County, providing maintenance
as described in the Primitive Road Policy will consist of grading the road a
few times a year. Providing maintenance on this road will not reduce the
level of service to other roads in the Gila County Maintained Roadway
System.

Recommendation
The Gila County Public Works Director recommends that the Board adopt
Resolution No. 20-06-01 accepting the grants of roadway deeds for Turner
Hill Road.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 20-06-01



Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 20-06-01
accepting grants of roadway deeds for Turner Hill Road in Young, Arizona;
establishing the road as a primitive road; accepting it into the Gila County
Primitive Roads System; and authorizing the execution of the Primitive
Road Easement.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Resolution No. 20-06-01
Docket 179, Pg. 441
Docket 302, Pg. 746
Exhibit A



 

When recorded please send to 

Marian Sheppard, BOS 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-06-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

ACCEPTING GRANTS OF ROADWAY DEEDS FROM EVA L. TURNER AS 

SHOWN ON DOCKET NUMBER 179, PAGE 441, GILA COUNTY RECORDS, 

AND DOCKET NUMBER 302, PAGE 146, GILA COUNTY RECORDS, AS 

SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED EXHIBIT “A”; ESTABLISHING TURNER HILL 

ROAD AS A PRIMITIVE ROAD; ACCEPTING TURNER HILL ROAD INTO 

THE GILA COUNTY PRIMITIVE ROADS SYSTEM; AND AUTHORIZING ITS 

CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS ON BEHALF OF 

GILA COUNTY.  

 

WHEREAS, Eva L. Turner agreed to grant Gila County roadway deeds for the purpose of a public 

roadway; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that the public interest will be served by the acceptance of the 

foregoing Public Roadway Deeds upon the terms and conditions set forth therein; and, 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of A.R.S. § 28-6706, the Gila County Board of Supervisors 

may designate and sign a public road within its jurisdiction as a primitive road; and,  

 

WHEREAS, Turner Hill Road was opened prior to June 13, 1990 and was not constructed in accordance 

with County standards; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Turner Hill Road shall be signed as a Primitive Road in locations along said road to 

adequately warn the public; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the signs shall state Primitive Road, Caution, Use at Your Own Risk. This surface is not 

regularly maintained; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that the public interest will be served by designating Turner 

Hill Road as shown on the attached Exhibit “A” as a Primitive Road in accordance with A.R.S. § 28-6706; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors that grants of roadway deeds 

from Eva L. Turner are hereby accepted; Turner Hill Road as shown on the attached Exhibit “A” shall be 

designated as a Primitive Road and accepted for maintenance into the Gila County Primitive Roads 

System; and the Board’s Chairman shall be authorized to execute the necessary documents on behalf of 

Gila County. 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution No. 20-06-01        Page 1 of 3 



 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of June 2020, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 

 

Attest: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

_______________________________ ____________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board Woody Cline, Chairman 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution No. 20-06-01        Page 2 of 3 



 

 

 
 

 

Resolution No. 20-06-01        Page 3 of 3 









(928) 402-8899745 N. Rose Mofford Way
Globe, AZ 85501 FAX (928) 425-8104

Gila County Public Works

STEVE  SANDERS,  DIRECTOR

EXHIBIT  "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
187, PAGE 18 AND CORRECTED DEED RECORDED IN DOCKET 302,

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAY PER DEEDS RECORDED IN DOCKET 179, PAGE 441; DOCKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W TURNER HILL ROAD - A THIRTY FOOT WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-

AutoCAD SHX Text
YOUNG ARIZONA

AutoCAD SHX Text
W TURNER HILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
N QUARTER CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION 20, T9N R14E

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THE SW QUARTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THE NE QUARTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
W TURNER HILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
W TURNER HILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TONTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOREST

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOCKET 302 PAGE 746

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOCKET 179 PAGE 441

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE HWY 288

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE 746 IN THE OFFICE OF THE GILA COUNTY RECORDER.



   
ARF-6058   Regular Agenda Item     2. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/02/2020  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Mary Springer, Finance Director
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: FY20-21 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7/1/2020 - 6/30/2021 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Request approval of Contract No. 040320-A to ATOZEN, LLC DBA
Sanders Transport and No. 040320-B to Lamont Mortuary of Globe for
the provision of autopsy transport services.

Background Information
Currently, the funeral homes are used to transport deceased persons from
their location to the location where the autopsy will be performed. There
are no current contracts in place identifying pricing and availability. In
order to secure the service when needed, it is the desire of the County to
enter into service contracts that provide specific costs and are deemed in
the best interest of the County. Proposals were publicly opened on May
13, 2020, and 2 responsive and responsible proposals were received from
ATOZEN, LLC DBA Sanders Transport and Lamont Mortuary of Globe.

Evaluation
The transport service is necessary and required to transport deceased
persons when an autopsy is necessary as determined by the County
Attorney. Negotiated contracts need to be in place to secure pricing for a
specified period. Of the proposals evaluated the following proposals were
deemed the best overall value for Gila County based on pricing and
geographical location to provide services. Award contract to ATOZEN, LLC
DBA Sanders Transport for the following areas: Gisela, Globe, Hayden,
Miami, Payson, Pine-Strawberry, Punkin Center, Rye, Star Valley,
Winkelman, and other locations within Gila County. Award contract to
Lamont Mortuary of Globe for the following areas: Roosevelt, San Carlos,



Tonto Basin, Young.

Conclusion
It is in the best interest of the County to award contracts to provide
autopsy transport services as required.

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Contract No. 040320-A to
ATOZEN, LLC DBA Sanders Transport in the amount of $45,000, and
Contract No. 040320-B to Lamont Mortuary of Globe in the amount of
$25,000 for the provision of autopsy transport services. (Mary Springer)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
Notice of Invitation for Bids
IFB 040320
IFB 040320 Bid Results
IFB 040320 Bid Analysis
IFB 040320 Sign in Sheet
Contract 040320-A ATO ZEN
Contract 040320-B Lamont
Addendum No. 1 to Notice Of Invitation for Bids No. 040320







IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 0 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

INVITATION FOR BIDS (IFB) NO. 040320 
 
 

TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES 
 
 
 
 
  

BIDDER’S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

Tim Humphrey, Vice Chairman 
Tommie C. Martin, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
James Menlove 

 
 

 

 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 1 
 

                                                              GILA COUNTY 
NOTICE OF INVITATION FOR BIDS NO. 040320 

TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES 

 

Notice is hereby given that Gila County is requesting proposals from qualified Contractors for Transport for 
Autopsy Services.  
 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE:      11:00 AM, MST, May 13, 2020 
 

RETURN PROPOSAL TO:      GILA COUNTY  
    FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

        1400 EAST ASH STREET 
        GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive proposals for the material or services as specified will be 
received by the Gila County Finance Department, until the time and date cited. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in the finance 
department Copper Conference Room or other site, which may be designated.  Any proposals received later than 
the date and time specified above will be returned unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  The 
prevailing clock shall be the atomic clock in the reception area of the Copper Building. 
 
All proposals shall be made on the Invitation for Bids forms included in this IFB No. 040320 package and shall 
include all applicable taxes. 
 
Interested bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling the Gila County Finance Department at 928-
402-4355 or by clicking on the link: 
http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php and downloading the file.  
Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire request for proposal. 
 
Any questions regarding this Invitation for Bids shall be submitted in writing and directed to:  Betty Hurst, 
Contracts Administrator, at bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov, 928-402-4355. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to waive 
any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.  All 
procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the Gila 
County Procurement Code.  A copy of the code is available for review in the Clerk of the Board’s office, Globe, 
AZ. 
 
Dates advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt: April 29, 2020 and, May 6, 2020 and Payson Roundup May 1, 2020 
and, May 5, 2020. 
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Woody Cline, Chairman of the Board  
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 The Gila County Attorney’s Office  
 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php
mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 

 
 
Notice of Solicitation.................................................................................................................................. 1 

Table of Contents ....................................................................................................................................... 2 

Intent ......................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................................ 4-5 

Exhibit “A”; Instructions to Bidders ......................................................................................................... 6-8 

 Preparation of Sealed Bid .......................................................................................................................... 6 
 Amendments ............................................................................................................................................. 7 
 Inquiries ..................................................................................................................................................... 7 
 Late Proposals ........................................................................................................................................... 7 
 Submittal Bid Format ............................................................................................................................. 7-8 

General Terms and Conditions .............................................................................................................. 9-10 

 Award of Contract ..................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Protests ..................................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Laws & Ordinances .................................................................................................................................. 10 

Exhibit “B”; Contract Award Agreement ............................................................................................. 11-15 

 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations ........................................................................................................ 11 
 Authority to Contract .............................................................................................................................. 11 
 Contract Amendments ............................................................................................................................ 11 
 Contract Default ...................................................................................................................................... 11 
 Right to Assurance ................................................................................................................................... 12 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement .................................................................................. 12 
 Cancellation of County Contracts ............................................................................................................ 12 
 Termination of Contract .......................................................................................................................... 12 

Indemnification Clause ............................................................................................................................ 13 
Insurance Requirements .................................................................................................................... 13-15 

 Exhibit “C”; Minimum Specifications and Information ........................................................................ 16-17 

 Section 1.0; General Purpose .................................................................................................................. 16 
 Section 2.0; Bid Pricing & Term ............................................................................................................... 16 
 Section 3.0; Negotiations ........................................................................................................................ 16 
 

Qualification and Certification Forms .................................................................................................. 18-19 

Price Sheet ............................................................................................................................................... 20 

Reference List .......................................................................................................................................... 21 

No Collusion Form.................................................................................................................................... 22 

Certification Regarding Debarment……………………………………………………………………………………………………….23 

Intentions Concerning Subcontracting ..................................................................................................... 24 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance .................................................................................................... 25 

Israel Boycott Certification……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………26 

Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment ................................................................................................... 27 

Offer Page ................................................................................................................................................ 28 

Acceptance of Offer Page ......................................................................................................................... 29 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 3 
 

 

INTENT 
                               

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS FOR: Transport for Autopsy Services 
 

INTENT: 
 
Gila County has entered into a contract with the Pinal County Medical Examiner’s Office for autopsy 
services.  The purpose of this request for bids is to establish pricing for transportation of deceased 
persons when an autopsy is determined to be necessary by the County Attorney. 

 
 

 
 

 
For the purposes of this Request for Proposal, “Contractor” is defined as an individual or an entity 
who submits a bid. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 4 
 

 
 
SCOPE OF WORK:  
 

Transport for Autopsy Services  

 

Contractor Responsibility: 
 
Contractor must adhere to the following: 
 
A. After the deceased has been classified as a Medical Examiner’s case, the 
Contractor will pick up and transport the deceased person(s) from the public way, private residences, 
businesses, hospitals, and other such locations as required. 
 
Note: The Respondent must not subcontract the transport of deceased persons. Respondent’s proposal will be 
deemed non-responsive and rejected if proposal shows that Respondent has subcontracted the transport of 
any deceased person.  
 
B. Entry on or into a death scene location must be approved only after clearance by law enforcement 
personnel in charge of the investigation. The Contractor must exercise extreme caution in its attempts to avoid 
disturbing such scenes and will remain on such locations as briefly as possible.  
 
C. Once a transport has begun, Contractor will be prohibited from stopping at any other location, except 
for purposes of having a decedent pronounced dead, while enroute to the Medical Examiner’s Office at Pinal 
County ME, 570 West Adamsville Road, Florence, Arizona 85132. 
 
D. Extreme caution must be used when transporting deceased persons to minimize post-mortem trauma 
to the body. 
 
E. While transporting the deceased, the Contractor will be prohibited from using filming or taping devices 
of any kind including, but not limited to, cameras, video cameras, audio recorders, or the like. 
 
F. Deceased persons must be transported one at a time. In certain circumstances, a maximum of two (2) 
bodies can be transported from the same incident/scene with the approval of the Medical Examiner and the 
investigating officer on the scene, and only if ample room in the transport vehicle exists. Under no 
circumstances will one body be stacked atop another. At no time will a deceased person from different 
incidents/scenes be transported together. 
 
G. When a situation occurs in which the maximum of two (2) deceased persons from the same 
incident/scene are transported together, a tagging system must be used to keep identification of the 
decedents correct.  
 
H. Contractor will be required to witness an inventory of any evidence or personal effects, including but 
not limited to any and all medications which may be brought in with the body. Both the Medical Examiner and 
the Contractor must sign the inventory sheet, certifying the contents. 
 
I. Contractor, or any director, stockholder, officer of, partner to, principal employee of, or any member 
of any of their immediate families must never refer, “steer, or lead” any persons to their own or any other 
funeral homes, attorneys, or florist shops. 
 
J. Vehicles must be suitable for the task of transporting deceased persons (panel vans, hearse-type 
vehicles). 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 5 
 

  
K. Vehicles must be properly insured and equipped with working theft-prevention devices. All vehicles 
and equipment required to perform under this contract must meet Federal, State, and City requirements 
(including all OSHA regulations) at a minimum prior to commencement of operations and during the term of 
the contract. 
 
L. Any vehicle to be used by the Contractor must have a valid Arizona State license plate. 
 
M. All Contractors’ employees transporting deceased persons must have valid state driver’s licenses. 
Proof of issuance must be provided at time of award of the contract and at any time during the contract, upon 
request by the County. 
 
N. Contractor must submit their training protocol for employees that transport deceased persons. 
 
O. The Contractor and their employees are prohibited from conveying any information in any way to the 
family of the deceased, the media, attorneys or their agents, or medical personnel in relation to or about their 
services for the County and Medical Examiner’s cases. Contractor must not distribute, leave, or supply 
information about their services at any scene, residence, or hospital where they are called to transport 
deceased persons for the County or the Medical Examiner. 
 
P. The Contractor must have a contact person able to understand and communicate in spoken and 
written English available, twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week three hundred sixty five (365) 
days a year. Contact person must know the geography of the County, and the standard operating requirements 
of the Sheriff’s Office, Police Departments and Medical Examiner’s Office. 
 
 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 
 
 
Qualifying experience includes: Ability to respond to requests for services 24/7, 365 days per week with 
appropriate trained personnel and equipment to transport deceased individuals for autopsy services. 
 
 

 
SCOPE:  

 

It is the intent of Gila County to award a contract to a qualified Contractor for Transport for Autopsy Services 

 

See page 20 of Bid Packet for Price Proposal. 

 

INFORMATION REQUESTS 

All requests for additional information shall be put in writing and directed to: Betty Hurst, Contracts 

Administrator, (928) 402-4355,  bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 

IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND EXHIBIT “B”, BIDDERS AWARD AGREEMENT ARE 
BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT LANGUAGE FOR 
INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL APPEAR IN EXHIBIT 
“C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER THE LANGUAGE 
APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 

EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 
Preparation of Sealed Proposal 

A. Sealed proposals will be received by the Gila County Finance Department, from individuals and 
Contractors to deliver the product(s), goods and services contained, to establish a contract for 
specified locations within Gila County.  The county seeks sealed proposals only from qualified, 
experienced Contractors able to provide services which are, in all respects, responsive to the 
specifications.  All proposals shall be on the forms provided in this Invitation for Bid package.  It is 
permissible to copy these forms if required but copies must have original signatures. 

 
B. Before submitting its proposal and qualification form each Contractor shall familiarize itself with the 

scope of work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully 
correlate its observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the 
expense and difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a proposal will 
constitute a representation of compliance by the Contractor.  There will be no subsequent financial 
adjustment, other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Contractors must complete the proposal and qualifications forms provided in this request for proposal 

package in full, original signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the proposal and to be 
submitted at the time of bid and made a part of this contract.  The county will use the proposal and 
qualifications form in evaluating the capacity of Contractor(s) to perform the scope of services as set 
forth in the Contract.  Failure of any Contractor to complete and submit the price sheet and signature 
and offer page at time and place of opening shall be grounds for automatic disqualification of the 
Contractor(s) from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the proposal must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the request for proposal shall be listed on the 
proposal. 

 
F. No alterations in proposals, or in the printed forms therefor, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise 

will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the Contractor; if initialed, the 
county may require the Contractor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 

 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 7 
 

 
 

Instructions to Bidders continued…. 

 
Addendum 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this Invitation for Bid must be acknowledged by all Contractors 
in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the bidder checklist & addenda acknowledgment form, page 27. 
2. Copies of all addenda must be attached to the submittal. 
 

Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a proposal being rejected as non-
responsive. 
 

Inquiries 

Any questions related to this request for proposal must be directed to those whose names appear on the notice.  
The Gila County Supervisors may require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence related to 
a Invitation for Bids should refer to the appropriate Invitation for Bids number, page, and paragraph number.  
However, the Contractor(s) must not place the request for proposal number on the outside of an envelope 
containing questions since such an envelope may be identified as a sealed proposal and may not be opened until 
after the official request for proposal due date and time.  Questions received after 3:00 P.M., Thursday, May 7, 
2020 will not be answered.   Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be binding.  Oral and other 
interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 

 

Late Proposals 

Any proposal received later than the date and time specified on the notice for sealed proposal will be returned 
unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  Any Contractor submitting a late proposal shall be so notified. 
 

 

Submittal Proposal Format: 

It is required that One (1) Original and Two (2) copies (3 TOTAL) with original signatures on all three (3) of the 
proposal and all forms shall be submitted.  The county will not be liable for any cost incident to the preparation 
of proposal, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy 
these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not be considered.   Spiral bound proposals are not 
permitted. Failure to include all required documents, all with original signatures, may invalidate the bid. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 8 
 

 

Instructions to Bidders continued… 

 
1. By signature in the offer section of the offer and acceptance page, Contractor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
 

B. The Contractor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 
 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, county, 
city, town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Contractor awarded the contract to 
provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the proposal.  Delivery charges may 
differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 
2. Proposals submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving proposals at the 

place and prior to the time designated for receipts of proposals. 
 
3. The county is not responsible for any Contractor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 

confers no right to the Contractor unless the Contractor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the 
proposal deadline. 

 

 

The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, a minimum of Three (3) copies with original signatures 
shall be provided by the Bidder.  The words “SEALED PROPOSAL” with Proposal Title “TRANSPORT FOR 
AUTOPSY SERVICES”, Proposal No., “040320”, Date “May 13, 2020”, and time “11:00 AM” of proposal opening 
shall be written on the envelope.  The Bidder(s) shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the 
location designated in the notice.  Spiral bound proposals are not permitted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 9 
 

 

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Award of Contract   
 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any proposal by individual line item, 
by group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interests 
of, and most advantageous to the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any other provisions of the IFB, the county reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all proposals; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a request for proposal. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the county contracts to the lowest 

responsive and responsible Contractor(s).  To ensure that all Contractors are experienced, reasonably 
equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination of 
responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the proposal of any Contractor(s) who has previously 

failed to perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior proposal for furnishing and 
installing materials similar in nature or providing similar services. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this request for proposal will be reviewed by the Gila County attorney 

and Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Contractor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose proposals are most advantageous to the county may be invited to appear before the Board for 
an oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Contractor shall sign and file with the county, within ten (10) days after the 

date of the notice of intent to award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 

Protests 

Only other Contractors who have submitted a timely proposal have the right to protest.  A protest of an award 
must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing and 
must include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, 
Arizona 85501. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 10 
 

 
 

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 
 
Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be governed and enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  
Contractor shall maintain in current status all federal, state and local licenses and permits required for the 
operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with the applicable 
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable 
federal regulations under the act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 11 
 

 
EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACT AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as an example of the contract agreement to any Contractor, its agents, subcontractors, 
or representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the county, i.e. by submitting proposals to 
this solicitation requiring sealed proposals, it does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of acceptance 
of these provisions will be the Contractor’s signature(s) appearing on all forms contained on pages 21 through 
30. 

 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The county maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to the county any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 

Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the request for proposal issued by the county and the offer submitted by the 
Contractor in response to the IFB.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, specifications 
and other requirements set forth within the text of the IFB.  The county reserves the right to clarify any 
contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, 
as determined by the County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract 
shall contain the entire agreement between Gila County and the Contractor relating to these requirements and 
shall prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master 
agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any items or services awarded, or any other agreement 
that is based upon this contract may be made without express written approval of Gila County in the form of an 
official contract amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the Contractor or any agency 
is a violation of the county procurement code.  Any such action is subject to the legal and contractual remedies 
available to the county inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, suspension and debarment of the 
Contractor. 

 

Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Contractor. 
 
Contract Default 

A. The county, by written notice of default to the Contractor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances: 

 
1. If the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or deliverables, or to perform the services 

within the times specified; or 
 

2. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the county terminates this contract in whole or part, the county may procure supplies or 

services similar to those terminated, and the Contractor shall be liable to the county for any excess costs 
for such similar supplies or services. 

 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 12 
 

 
Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the event 
that a demand is made, and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat 
this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and towns 
of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely acquisition 
and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The Contractor to whom this contract is awarded may be 
requested by other parties of said active purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the right to purchase 
supplies, equipment, and services provided by the Contractor under this contract, pursuant to the terms and 
conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules and regulations of 
the respective entity and the approval of the Contractor. 
 

Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 

Termination of Contract 

The county, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time by mutual written consent, or by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor.  The county at its convenience, by written notice, may 
terminate this contract, in whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the county shall be liable only for 
payment under the payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received 
by the county before the effective date of termination. 
 
The county reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Contractor to 
carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The county will issue a written ten (10) day notice of 
default to Contractor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions 
or services and specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor attempts to impose on the county material products, or 
workmanship, for services which are of unacceptable quality.  

3. Contractor fails to furnish the required service or product within the time stipulated in the contract. 
4. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the 

requirements of the contract or give the county a positive indication that Contractor will perform to 
the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the county created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of county, state and 
federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 13 
 

 

Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
If funds are not allocated by the county and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the 
contract period for the service may be terminated by the county at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The county shall notify the Contractor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by 
a shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the county in the event this provision is exercised, and the county 
shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of termination under 
this paragraph. 
 
 
Indemnification Clause 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation 
and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss 
or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent 
or willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or 
subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ 
Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, 
statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee 
shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that the Contractor 
will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs. 
 
General 

After receipt of all proposals, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned proposals, unacknowledged addenda, incomplete proposals, non-conformance with 
mandatory requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
Subsequent to the initial review, all remaining proposals shall be reviewed by the Gila County Finance 
Department to evaluate the information submitted, perform tests when necessary and make comparisons in 
order to approve or reject the request.  If rejected, the purchasing department shall give written notice to the 
bidder submitting this request. 

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their 
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance 
against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this contract and do not limit the indemnity 
covenants contained in this contract.  The county does not warrant that the minimum limits contained herein 
are sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under 
this contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors and Contractor may 
purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 14 
 

 

Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of liability 

not less than those stated below. 
 

1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage. 

• General Aggregate $2,000,000 

• Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

• Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

• Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The County of 
Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the activities 
performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor". 

 
2. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 
 

3. Automobile Liability 
Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used 
in the performance of this Contract. 
 Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

 
4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability) 

 Each Claim $1,000,000 
 Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

a. In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this Contract is written on a 
claims-made basis, Contractor warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede 
the effective date of this Contract; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an 
extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years beginning at the time 
work under this Contract is completed. 

 

B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the 
following provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of Gila 
shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those 
limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2 The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect to 
all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 15 
 

 

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract 

shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or 
endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the County.  
Such notice shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 
or and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved 

unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  The 
county does not warrant that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the 
Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the county with certificates of insurance (ACORD 

form or equivalent approved by the county) as required by this contract.  The certificates for each 
insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work 

commences.  Each insurance policy required by this contract must be in effect at or prior to 
commencement of work under this contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  Failure 
to maintain the insurance policies as required by this contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a 
material breach of contract.   

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 

E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 or email to bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov. The county project and contract number 
and project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The county reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required by this contract at any time.   

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insured’s 

under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the county separate certificates and endorsements for each 
subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements identified 
above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this contract shall be made 

by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal contract 
amendment but may be made by administrative action. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 16 
 

 

 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS – PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Purpose 
It is the intent of this invitation for proposals to enter into a contract with a qualified Contractor to provide 
TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES for Gila County.  
 

This specification is intended to describe the type, size, and quality, which will best meet the demands of the 
using department.  It is NOT intended to favor any one brand or make.  The mention of brand names or 
components merely serves to specify the quality or general type required. 

 
 
SECTION 1.0 
 
General Purpose 

 
1.1 All proposals must represent the entire package.  Partial awards will not be made unless otherwise 

stated in the proposal specifications. 
 
1.2 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of county needs and in no event shall the county be obligated to purchase the exact 
quantities of any item set forth in the proposal.  The county does not guarantee any maximum or 
minimum amounts of purchase. 

 
1.3 Contractor shall review its proposal submission to assure the following requirements are met. 

 
1.3.1 One (1) original and two (2) copies, total of three (3), all with original signatures, shall be 

submitted at time of bid opening. 
1.3.2 Qualification and Certification Form (page 18-19) 
1.3.3 Price Sheet (page 20) 
1.3.4 References List (page 21) 
1.3.5 No Collusion Certification (page 22) 
1.3.6 Certification of Debarment (page 23) 
1.3.7 Intentions Concerning Subcontracting (page 24) 
1.3.8 Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance (page 25) 
1.3.9 Israel Boycott Certification (page 26) 
1.3.10 Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment (page 27) 
1.3.11 Offer Page (page 28) 
1.3.12 Acceptance of Offer (page 29) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 17 
 

SECTION 2.0 

Proposal Pricing & Term 

1.1 Prices shall be in effect for the duration of the contract period.  Contractor shall incorporate all 
profit and discount into their price.  The exception will be any price reduction, which will be applied 
to the contract immediately upon the Contractor’s or Gila County’s discovery of any such price 
reduction. 
 

2.2 The term of the contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect for one year from 
the date of award.  The county shall have the option to renew the contract for three (3) additional 
one (1) year periods upon agreement of both parties. 

 

SECTION 3.0 

3.1 Evaluation of Proposal and Negotiations 

The finance director may appoint a selection committee to evaluate the proposals and make a 
recommendation based on the criteria set forth in the Invitation for Bids.  The board of supervisors shall 
not act in capacity of the selection committee.  Proposals shall be evaluated on the factors set forth in 
the Invitation for Bids. 

 
For the purpose of conducting negotiations, the county shall determine what proposals are susceptible 
for being selected for award.  A determination that a proposal is unacceptable shall be in writing, state 
the basis of the determination and be retained in the county files.  If it is determined a proposal is not 
reasonably susceptible of being selected for award, the Contractor shall be notified and shall not be 
afforded an opportunity to modify its proposal. 
 

3.2 Negotiations with Individual Contractors 

▪ Gila County may establish procedures and schedules for conducting negotiations.  Disclosure of a 
contractors’ price or any information derived from competing proposal prices or any information 
derived from competing proposals is prohibited.   

▪  
a.    Any response to a request for clarification of a proposal shall be in writing.   
b.    Gila County shall keep a record of all negotiations. 

 
▪ For the purposes of conducting negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of the 

following methods that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 
 

a. Concurrent Negotiations:  Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with responsible 
Contractors for the purpose of determining source selection and or contract award.  

b. Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the director to enter into exclusive 
negotiations with the responsible Contractor whose proposal is determined in the selection 
process to be most advantageous to the county. 

 
▪ Exclusive negotiations may be conducted subsequent to concurrent negotiations or may be 

conducted without requiring previous concurrent negotiations.  
 

a. A determination to conduct exclusive negotiations shall not constitute a contract award nor 
shall it confer any property rights to the successful Contractor.   

b. If exclusive negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the county may 
enter into exclusive negotiations with the next highest rank Contractor without the need to 
repeat the formal Solicitation process. 

 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 18 
 

 
 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
EXHIBIT “D” Bidder Qualifications and Certification 
 
Purpose 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of Contractors 
under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 
Contract Number 040320 TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES 
 
The applicant submitting this proposal warrants the following: 
 
1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 

________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, and the 
reasons Contractor failed to perform in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 
contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractor’s disqualification, and whether this disqualification 
remains in effect in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
4. Has Contractor ever terminated a contract for cause with any individual or entity, government or 

otherwise, (under Contractor’s present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, 
give details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was terminated in the 
narrative part of this contract. 

 
5. Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   

a. A brief history of the Contractor. 
b. A cost proposal shall be submitted on the price sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of 

this contract by this reference. 
c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar to the scope 

of services described herein; shall be submitted on the reference list, attached hereon and 
made a full part of this contract by this reference. 

d. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified services. 
e. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 19 
 

 
 
 
 
 
6. Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona:  _____________________________ 

                                     (If Applicable) 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a business’ computed 
loss ratio and determine a factor, which when multiplied by premium, can reward policyholders with lower 
losses.  E-mod rate may be a determining factor in bid award. 

 

7. Current Contractor Business Arizona License Number:  __________________________________ 
(If Applicable) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 20 
 

 
 

PRICE SHEET 

Please complete price sheet in its entirety for the services provided in IFB 040320 TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY 
SERVICES.   
 

Contractor Name:  _____________________________________            Phone No.:  __________________ 
 

   Pricing: for transportation to 570 West Adamsville Road, Florence, Arizona 85132 
 

Gila County Cities & Towns Price for Transport 

  

Gisela  

Globe  

Hayden  

Miami  

Payson  

Pine-Strawberry  

Punkin Center  

Roosevelt  

Rye  

San Carlos  

Star Valley  

Tonto Basin  

Winkleman  

Young  

Other locations within Gila County  

  

 
 

Body Bags Price 

Small  

Medium  

Large  

X-Large  

 

Refrigerated Storage Price 

Cost per Day  

 
 
**All applicable taxes shall be included in proposed amount. 
 

      
 ________________________________________ 

       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 21 
 

 
 

REFERENCE LIST 

These references are required to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of the Contractor under 
consideration for final award.       
 
References 

Please list a minimum of three (3) references for contracts, entered into or completed, of similar size and scope, 
as this Invitation for Bids during the past twenty-four (24) months.  Bidder may attach further reference 
information as necessary. 
 

1. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

    _______________________________________________________________ 

                 _______________________________________________________________  

 

2. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                   _______________________________________________________________ 

 

3. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                               _______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
            _______________________________________ 

           Name of Business 

________________________________________ 
           Signature of Authorized Representative 

                                                                                                            ________________________________________ 
           Title 

 

 

 

 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 22 
 

 
 

AFFIDAVIT BY BIDDER  
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF GILA  ) 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Individual) 
 

being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he or she is ___________________________________________________________________________ 

(Title) 
 
Of _____________________________________________________________________________ and 

(Name of Business) 
 

 That he or she is submitting a proposal on TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES, IFB NO. 040320 and, 
 
 That pursuant to Section 112 (C) of Title 23 USC, he or she certifies as follows: 
 
 That neither he or she nor anyone associated with the said ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of Business) 
 

has, directly, or indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any 
action in restraint of free-competitive bidding in connection with the above-mentioned service. 
   
      ____________________________________________ 
      Name of Business 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      By 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
       
Subscribed and sworn to before me this _________ day of ____________________________, 2020. 
 
__________________________________ My Commission expires:  ______________________ 
Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 23 
 

 
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 

RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

 
The prospective participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 
 

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
 

(b) Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a 
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes or commission or embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 
 

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government 
entity (Federal, State, or local with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 
 

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default 

 
I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal 
or termination of the award.  IN addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in a 
fine of up to $10,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both. 
 
 
 

Typed Name and Title of Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
 

Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

 .................................................... I am unable to certify the above statements.  My explanation is attached 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 24 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING 
 
 
 At the time of the submission of bids on Bid No. 040320 TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES, my 
intention concerning subcontracting a portion of the work is as indicated below. 
 
 A list of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must accompany the 
proposal.  The list must include the subcontractors name, address, phone number, and Arizona Registrar of 
Contractors License Number.  List must be provided in a sealed envelope marked “List of Subcontractors”. 

 
 
 
 
 

     YES, it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 

     NO,  it is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 25 
 

 
 
 
 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 
 

Contractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further ensure that each 
subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract likewise complies with the state and 
federal immigration laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any subcontractor in 
order to verify such party’s compliance with the state and federal immigration laws.   
 
 Any breach of Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the state and federal 
immigration laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this 
contract subjecting Contractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract. If the 
breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Contractor shall be 
required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been 
provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to delay 
delivery of services.   
 
Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of county’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this 
Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:  “Subcontractor hereby 
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further 
agrees that county may inspect the subcontractor’s books and records to insure that subcontractor is in 
compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by subcontractor will be deemed to be a 
material breach of this contract subjecting subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 
responsibility of Contractor. 
 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 26 
 

 
 
 

ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in and will not, for the duration of this 
agreement, engage in a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this certification by 
Contractor may result in action by County up to and including termination of this agreement. 
 

 

 

       
Date:  __________________________  

 
 

_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Title 

       

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Unless and until the District Court's injunction in Jordahl is stayed or lifted, the Anti-Israel Boycott Provision 
(A.R.S. §35-393.01 (A)) is unenforceable and the State will take no action to enforce it. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 27 
 

BIDDER CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all bid documents shall be completed and executed and submitted with this IFB.  
If Contractor fails to complete and execute any portion of the bid documents, all with original signatures, the IFB 
may be determined to be non-responsive and rejected. 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT      COMPLETED AND EXECUTED 
 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM              ______________ 

PRICE SHEET              ______________ 

REFERENCE LIST             ______________ 

NO COLLUSION FORM            ______________ 

INTENTIONS IN SUBCONTRACTING           ______________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE          ______________ 

ISRAEL BOYCOT CERTIFICATION           ______________ 

CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT          ______________ 

OFFER PAGE              ______________ 

      
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 

 

    #1  #2             #3             #4           #5 

Initials         ________        ________          ________           ________          ________ 

Date         ________           ________          ________            ________          ________  
 

 

Signed and dated this _________ day of ______________________, 2020 
 
           ______________________________________ 
                                   Contractor: 

           ______________________________________ 
                                       By:   
 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Finance Department, Gila County and bearing the following 
statement on the outside of the envelope:  Invitation for Bids:  Bid No. 040320 TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES.  All 
proposals shall be filed with the Gila County Finance Department Division in the Copper Building at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, 
AZ on or before, May 13, 2020, 11:00 a.m. 

 
 
 

 

 

 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 28 
 

 

OFFER PAGE  

TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and 
conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this request for proposal document. 
 
Signature also certifies the Contractors bid proposal is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that 
the bid proposal is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Contractor submitting 
the proposal has not revealed the contents of the proposal to, or in any way colluded with, any other Contractor 
which may compete for the contract; and that no other Contractor which may compete for the contract has 
revealed the contents of a proposal to, or in any way colluded with, the Contractor submitting this proposal. 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  040320 TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES 
 
 
 
Contractor Submitting Proposal:    For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________  Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
________________________________________  Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   
       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
Proposal must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IFB NO. 040320/TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES Page 29 
 

 
 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
(For Gila County use only) 

 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Contractor                  is now bound to provide the materials or services listed 

in IFB No.: 040320, including all terms and conditions, specifications, and amendments, and the contractor’s 

offer as accepted by Gila County. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as    Contract No. 040320. The Contractor has been cautioned 

not to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this contract until Contractor 

receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this contract, each of which shall include original 
signatures, and for all purposes shall be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties 
hereinabove named, on this __________________ day of _________________________________,                    . 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:    CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
              
Woody Cline, Chairman, Board of Supervisors   Authorized Signature 
 
 
ATTEST:              
        Print Name 
 
         
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

 

 



      BID 040320

TITLE:

      BID              DUE

      NO.: DATE:
 

1

2

3

4

5

6

R

A

N

K

I

N

G

Transport for Autopsy Services

040320 May 13, 2020

COMMENTSBIDDER FIRM NAME BID AMOUNT

Sanders Transport

 

GILA COUNTY

Lamont Mortuary

See Attached  

EXHIBIT "K"

See Attached

BID RESULTS



IFB 040320 Transport for Autopsy Service

Gila County Cities & Towns Price for Transport Sanders Lamont

Gisela 370.00$                                          N/A

Globe 255.00$                                          265.00$                                    

Hayden 270.00$                                          365.00$                                    

Miami 235.00$                                          265.00$                                    

Payson 384.00$                                          N/A

Pine-Strawberry 428.00$                                          N/A

Punkin Center 358.00$                                          365.00$                                    

Roosevelt 313.00$                                          265.00$                                    

Rye 391.00$                                          N/A

San Carlos 306.00$                                          265.00$                                    

Star Valley 395.00$                                          N/A

Tonto Basin 353.00$                                          300.00$                                    

Winkleman 275.00$                                          365.00$                                    

Young 393.00$                                          365.00$                                    

Other locations within Gila County Based on location Avg $338 Local S. Gila County $265























































































































































































INVITATION FOR BID NO. 040320 
ADDENDUM #1 

 
 

GILA COUNTY 

TRANSPORT FOR AUTOPSY SERVICES 

INVITATION FOR BIDS NO. 040320 
 

ADDENDUM #1:   

DATE: 05/04/2020 

 

CLARIFICATIONS: 

 

• It is the intent of Gila County to award contracts for the services described in IFB 040320 

to one or more contractors if pricing and servicing availability is determined to be in the 

best interest of the County. 

• Respondents should provide pricing for only those areas they plan on providing service. 

•  On the pricing sheet indicate N/A or leave blank the areas that you consider not to be in 

your service area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This concludes Addendum No. 1 to Invitation for Bid No. 040320 

 



   
ARF-6059   Regular Agenda Item     2. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/02/2020  
Submitted For: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer 
Submitted By: Stephanie Chaidez, Purchasing Agent & Credit Card

Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2020-2021 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

TBD Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 050420 - Pharmacy Services
for Gila County Detention Medical

Background Information
The Gila County Sheriff's Office medical unit provides medical services for
those individuals incarcerated in Gila County at the Globe and Payson
facilities. The medical units are comprised of a physician, physician's
assistant, two (2) registered nurses and three (3) medical assistants.
When needed and at the direction of the licensed physician the medical
staff is required to provide prescription and over-the-counter medication.

Evaluation
The Gila County Sheriff's Office would like to establish a contract with a
pharmacy to provide prescription and over-the-counter medications to
streamline the process for purchasing and ordering medication.

With the Board's approval, a notice of Request for Proposals (RFP) No.
050420 will be advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt on June 10, 2020,
and June 17, 2020, with a due date of July 1, 2020.

Conclusion
By issuing RFP No. 050420 for pharmacy services for Gila County



By issuing RFP No. 050420 for pharmacy services for Gila County
Detention Medical services, the competitive bidding process will be utilized
to enter into a contract for these services.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the request to
advertise Request for Proposals No. 050420-Pharmacy Services for Gila
County Detention Medical for the Gila County Detention Center.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request
for Proposals No. 050420 - Pharmacy Services for Gila County
Detention Medical for a contractor to provide prescription and
over-the-counter medications for inmates in the Gila County Jail. (Mary
Springer/Sarah White)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
RFP No. 050420





RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
 
 

PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL 
 
 
 
 
  

BIDDER’S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

Tommie C. Martin, Member 
Tim Humphrey, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
James Menlove 

 
 

 

 
 

 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 1 
 

                                                              GILA COUNTY 
NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 

PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL 

 

Notice is hereby given that Gila County is requesting bid proposals from qualified Contractors for the provision 
of prescription and over-the counter medication for jail inmates.  
 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE:      2:00 PM, MST, July 1, 2020 
 

RETURN PROPOSAL TO:      GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
        COPPER BUILDING 
        1400 EAST ASH STREET 
        GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive Proposals for the material or services as specified will be 
received by the Gila County Finance Department, until the time and date cited. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in the Finance 
Department Copper Building Conference Room or other site, which may be designated.  Any proposals received 
later than the date and time specified above will be returned unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  
The prevailing clock shall be the atomic clock in the reception area of the Copper Building. 
 
All proposals shall be made on the Request for Sealed Proposals forms included in this RFP No. 050420 package, 
and shall include all applicable taxes. 
 
Interested Bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling the Gila County Finance Department at 928-
402-8897 or by clicking on the link: 
http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php and downloading the file.  
Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire Request for Proposal. 
 
Any questions regarding this Request for Proposals shall be submitted in writing and directed to:  Stephanie 
Chaidez, Purchasing Agent, at schaidez@gilacountyaz.gov, 928-402-8897. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject all proposals, or any bid proposal which is non-compliant, 
or to waive any informality in the bid proposals, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila 
County.  All procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations 
of the Gila County Procurement Code.  A copy of the Code is available for review in the Clerk of the Board’s office, 
Globe, AZ. 
  
Dates advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt:   June 10, 2020 and June 17, 2020 
 
 
Signed:_____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Woody Cline, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 The Gila County Attorney’s Office 
 

 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php
mailto:schaidez@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 
 

Notice of Solicitation ..................................................................................................................... 1 

Table of Contents .......................................................................................................................... 2 

Intent ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................... 4-5 

Information Requests……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..6 

Exhibit “A”; Instructions to Bidders............................................................................................. 7-9 

 Preparation of Sealed Bid ................................................................................................................... 7 
 Addendum .......................................................................................................................................... 8 
 Inquiries .............................................................................................................................................. 8 
 Late Proposals .................................................................................................................................... 8 
 Submittal Bid Format ..................................................................................................................... 8-9 

General Conditions……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………10-11 

General Terms and Conditions .................................................................................................12-13 

 Award of Contract ............................................................................................................................ 12 
 Protests ............................................................................................................................................ 12 
 Laws & Ordinances ........................................................................................................................... 13 

Exhibit “B”; Contract Award Agreement ..................................................................................14-19 

 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations ................................................................................................ 14 
 Authority to Contract ....................................................................................................................... 14 
 Contract Amendments ..................................................................................................................... 14 
 Contract Default ............................................................................................................................... 15 
 Right to Assurance ........................................................................................................................... 15 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing .............................................................................................. 15 
 Cancellation of County Contracts ..................................................................................................... 15 
 Termination of Contract ............................................................................................................. 15-16 

Indemnification Clause ..................................................................................................................... 16 
Israel Boycott Certification Clause……………………………………………………………………………………………….16 
General……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….17 
Insurance Requirements ............................................................................................................ 17-19 

 Exhibit “C”; Minimum Specifications/Information ....................................................................20-22 

 Purpose…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………20 

 Section 1.0; General Purpose ........................................................................................................... 20 
 Section 2.0; Drug List…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..21 
 Section 3.0; Bid Pricing & Term ........................................................................................................ 22 
 Section 4.0; Negotiations ................................................................................................................. 22 
Qualification and Certification Forms .......................................................................................23-24 
Price Sheet ................................................................................................................................. 25 
Reference List ............................................................................................................................. 26 
No Collusion Form ...................................................................................................................... 27 
Certification Regarding Debarment ……………………………………………………………………………………………… 28 
Intentions Concerning Subcontracting ......................................................................................... 29 
Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance ........................................................................................ 30 
Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment ....................................................................................... 31 
Offer Page .................................................................................................................................. 32 
Acceptance of Offer Page ............................................................................................................ 33 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 3 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 

PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
INTENT 

 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR: Pharmacy Services for Gila County Detention Medical 
 

INTENT: 
 

The purpose of this request is to establish a contract with a pharmacy to provide prescription and over-
the-counter medications; and to streamline the process for purchasing and ordering medication. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 4 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
SCOPE OF WORK:  
 
The Contractor shall: 

• Contractor must provide service for essential medications 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. This includes 
weekends, holidays and after hours. 

• Contractor must have an emergency notification system, must be available after hours, and must return 
calls within one hour to either the Jail or the local hospital Emergency Department for medication orders 
for jail inmates. 

• Orders placed by phone/fax/internet must be ready for delivery and available within a minimum of four 
hours from the time the order is placed if medically indicated. Contractor will deliver, or arrange delivery 
of, all medications to Gila County Jail. 

• An occasional emergency response time of 1 hour from order may be required.  

• Orders for medications where the next administered dose is to occur the next day may be delivered the 
following morning. 

• Contractor will label all medications in accordance with Arizona State labeling laws, and in such a manner 
as to make clear to any persons exactly the method and manner in which the medication is to be 
administered. This may necessitate including both generic and brand names on medication labels. 

• Contractor will use a unit dose system compatible with the Jail medication carts, without any 
modification of the carts or the medication packs. All prescriptions must be in unit dosage form, 
excepting those medications whose construction makes this impossible, or in those instances where 
specific instructions from a practitioner make unit dosage not possible. For some medications, liquid 
versions may be requested if they are available. 

• Contractor will be required to either pick up or pay for return shipping, for any unused medications that 
are unit dose packaged. Contractor must provide the Jail health system with a credit for those 
medications still in their unbroken unit dose bubbles. 

• Contractor will perform a quarterly pharmaceutical inspection at the Gila County Jail, either directly or 
via a contracted pharmacist, contracted by the bidder, and complete a written inspection review form. 
The areas of inspection shall include a minimum; appropriate storage of medications, including 
controlled medications and supplies, appropriate records to insure adequate control and accountability 
for medications, the presence or absence of outdated, discontinued or recalled medication, periodic 
reviews or stop dates of DEA-controlled or abusable drugs, review and appropriate use of a formulary, 
and the existence of appropriate policies and procedures for medications which are adequately 
followed. The inspection review form will be forwarded to, and retained by, the Jail Health Program 
Supervisor. 

• Contractor will submit periodic reports to the Jail Administration, summarizing medication use by the 
Agency. The frequency and details included in the report will be by mutual agreement. 

 
 
PROPOSAL FORMAT AND CONTENT 
To be complete, a proposal should contain the following sections: 
 
Cover letter 

• A cover letter addressed to Gila County Finance, Address 1400 E. Ash St. Globe, AZ 85501. The letter 
must state the submitter’s ability to comply with all the stipulations of the bid, and should point out the 
submitter’s particular strengths and why the proposer should be chosen to provide the service needed. 

• If there are areas in which the submitter cannot or may not comply, the letter must specify and explain.  

• The letter must be signed by a person legally able to commit the vendor or practice. The letter must 
include the submitter’s mailing address and telephone number. 

 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 5 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
Scope of Work Continued… 

 

SELECTION CRITERIA: 
The selection process will be based on the following criteria: 

• Professional qualifications and experience. 

• Delivery services offered. 

• Meeting of minimum status qualifications. 

• Weekend, holiday and after hours services offered, including satisfactory notification system. 

• Projected cost. 

 
 
MINIMUM STATUS QUALIFICATIONS 
 

• Contractor must be licensed and in good standing to provide prescription service by the Arizona 
Pharmacy Board. 

• Contractor will be required to supply proof of liability insurance in the minimum amount of $1 million 
per occurrence.  

• Contractor must be judged by the county to have adequate experience, legal status, finance and credit, 
staff, and facility to be able to service the account satisfactorily. Gila County will be the sole judge of 
whether or not a bidder meets these prequalification conditions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 6 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
INFORMATION REQUESTS 
 
All requests for additional information shall be put in writing and directed to: Stephanie Chaidez, Purchasing 
Agent, (928) 402-8897, schaidez@gilacountyaz.gov.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:schaidez@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 7 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

 
IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND EXHIBIT “B”, BIDDERS AWARD AGREEMENT ARE 
BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT LANGUAGE FOR 
INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL APPEAR IN EXHIBIT 
“C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER THE LANGUAGE 
APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 

EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 
Preparation of Sealed Proposal 

A. Sealed Proposals will be received by the Gila County Finance Department, from individuals and 
Contractors to deliver the product(s), goods and services contained, to establish a contract for 
specified locations within Gila County.  The County seeks sealed Proposals only from qualified, 
experienced Contractors able to provide services which are, in all respects, responsive to the 
specifications.  All Proposals shall be on the forms provided in this Request for Sealed Proposal 
package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required but copies must have original signatures. 

 
B. Before submitting its Proposal and Qualification Form each Contractor shall familiarize itself with the 

Scope of Work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully 
correlate its observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the 
expense and difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a Proposal will 
constitute a representation of compliance by the Contractor.  There will be no subsequent financial 
adjustment, other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Contractors must complete the Proposal and Qualifications Forms provided in this Request for 

Proposal package in full, original signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the Proposal and 
to be submitted at the time of bid, and made a part of this contract.  The County will use the Proposal 
and Qualifications Form in evaluating the capacity of Contractor(s) to perform the Scope of Services 
as set forth in the Contract.  Failure of any Contractor to complete and submit the Price Sheet and 
Signature Offer Page at time and place of opening shall be grounds for automatic disqualification of 
the Contractor(s) from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the Proposal must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the Request for Proposal shall be listed on the 
Proposal. 

 
F. No alterations in Proposals, or in the printed forms, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise will be 

acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the Contractor; if initialed, the County 
may require the Contractor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 8 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
 

Instructions to Bidders continued…. 

 
Addendum 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this Request for Sealed Proposal must be acknowledged by all 
Contractors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the Bidder Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form, page 30. 
2. Copies of all addenda must be attached to the submittal. 
 

Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a Proposal being rejected as non-
responsive. 
 

Inquiries 

Any questions related to this Request for Proposal must be directed to those whose names appear on the Notice.  
The Gila County Supervisors may require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence related to 
a Request for Proposals should refer to the appropriate Request for Proposals number, page, and paragraph 
number.  However, the Contractor(s) must not place the Request for Proposal number on the outside of an 
envelope containing questions since such an envelope may be identified as a sealed Proposal and may not be 
opened until after the official Request for Proposal due date and time.  Questions received after 3:00 P.M., 
Wednesday, June 24, 2020 will not be answered.   Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be 
binding.  Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 

 

Late Proposals 

Any proposal received later than the date and time specified on Notice for Sealed Proposal will be returned 
unopened.  Late Proposals shall not be considered.  Any Contractor submitting a late Proposal shall be so notified. 
 

 

 

 

Submittal Proposal Format: 

It is required that One (1) Original and Two (2) copies ( 3 TOTAL) with original signatures on all three (3) of the 
Proposal and all Forms shall be submitted.  The County will not be liable for any cost incident to the preparation 
of Proposal, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy 
these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not be considered.   Spiral bound proposals are not 
permitted. Failure to include all required documents, all with original signatures, may invalidate the bid. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 9 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
 

Instructions to Bidders continued…. 

 
 
 

1. By signature in the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page, Contractor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
 

B. The Contractor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 
 

 
2. Proposals submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving proposals at the 

place and prior to the time designated for receipts of Proposals. 
 
3. The County is not responsible for any Contractor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 

confers no right to the Contractor unless the Contractor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the 
Proposal deadline. 

 

 

The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, a minimum of Three (3) copies with original signatures 
shall be provided by the Bidder.  The words “SEALED PROPOSAL” with Proposal Title “PHARMACY SERVICES 
FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL”, Proposal No., “050420”, Date “July 1, 2020”, and time “2:00 PM” of 
Proposal opening shall be written on the envelope.  The Bidder(s) shall assume full responsibility for timely 
delivery at the location designated in the Notice.  Spiral bound proposals are not permitted. 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 10 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 

General Conditions 
1. Bid award will be made to the lowest or best bid, based on prescription cost, and fees bid, and the 

total pricing of the list of selected prescriptions. The successful bidder must offer all services and 
products requested for a single local source and supply for prescription medications for jail inmates. 

 
2. During the contract period, no adjustments will be allowed in prescription fees.  
3. Monthly adjustments in prescription prices may be allowed based on increases and decreases in the 

cost of drugs to the supplier. Provisions for price adjustment up or down from supplier pricing as of 
the award date, during the contract period, must be supplied in a bidder statement, accompanying the 
bid. 

4. Adjustments must be based on price changes to supplier, be clearly documented, and be easily 
auditable by the County 

5. Timely notice and documentation must be provided to the County. 
6. Gila County reserves the right to negotiate an acceptable method of price adjustment prior to 

awarding the bid. The County also reserves the right to inspect relevant bidder documentation at the 
bidder’s place of business prior to bid award and at any time during the contract period. 

7. Pricing structure for medications is anticipated to be a combination of the lesser of the following: 

• State Medical Rate 

• Average Wholesale Price (AWP) minus an agreed upon percentage 

• Store Retail Sale Price 
8. Fill fees for medications are anticipated to be the current HCFA and state medical rate. 
9. Bidder will be willing and able to submit, whether electronically or via hard copy, medication claims for 

those inmates processing private insurance, or state or federal medical assistance. These claims will be 
submitted directly to the carrier.  

10. The bidder will work with the Jail Health Program medical billing clerk to determine eligible offenders, 
and will bill the County only that portion of the medication cost not covered by the insurance or 
medical assistance carrier. 

11. Invoices will be required to be itemized by name of patient and prescription number, and must show 
for each item the drug name, potency, unit quantity, and unit cost. Invoice must be able to be sorted 
by type of medication.  

12. The County will require that the contractor be able to sort and print out a monthly invoice or report 
containing only those medications prescribed for mental health disorders. 

13. Payments will be processed in accordance with Gila County’s established policies and procedures. 
Invoices received prior to the first day of the month will be paid by the end of the month. 

14. Credit will be given to the County for any unused medications still in unbroken bubbles in a blister 
pack. 

15. During the contract period, if the supplier cannot supply services or products due to problems beyond 
their control, Gila County reserves the right to purchase elsewhere. 

16. The term of the bid will be from when it is signed by the Board of Supervisors and remains in effect for 
a period of one year from that date, and may be renewed for up to three (3) one-year terms, for a 
total of four (4) years, by mutual agreement of the parties. 

17. Either party may withdraw from the agreement with or without cause by providing the other party 
with 90 days written notice. 

18. The medical delivery system, including the medication delivery system, must conform to County 
standards for medical services provided in the Gila County code as set by state law, and with Arizona 
State law. The system must conform to the most recent edition of the Standards for Medical Services 
in Jails, developed by the National Commission on Correctional Health Care (NCCHC). 

 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 11 
 

 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
 

General Conditions continued… 

19. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Gila County Sheriff’s Office and it’s agents, 
servants or employees from all claims, actions, lawsuits, damages, judgments or liabilities arising out 
of an intentional tort committed as a result of providing medication to the Gila County Jail. Conversely, 
the Gila County Sheriff’s Office shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor and it’s agents, 
servants, employees, from all claims, actions, lawsuits, damages, judgments or liabilities arising out of 
the operation and maintenance of the Gila County Jail, including maintaining security, as well as acts 
performed by the contractor done in the course of providing medical care for Gila County. 

20. Standing orders, rules, and regulations of the contractor relating to medical services are generally to 
established and implemented solely by the contractor. In areas that impact upon the security and 
general administration of the Gila County Jail, the Policies and Procedures of the contractor are subject 
to review and approval of the Gila County Sheriff’s Office.  

 
 

It is the intent of Gila County to award a contract to a qualified Contractor for the Pharmacy Services for Gila 

County Detention Medical.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 12 
 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 
Award of Contract   
 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any Proposal by individual line item, 
by group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interest, 
most advantageous of the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any or other provisions of the RFP, the County reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all Proposals; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a Request for Proposal. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the County contracts to the lowest 

responsive and responsible Contractor(s).  To ensure that all Contractors are experienced, reasonably 
equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination of 
responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the Proposal of any Contractor(s) who has previously 

failed to perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior Proposal for furnishing and 
installing materials similar in nature. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this Request for Proposal will be reviewed by the Gila County attorney 

and Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Contractor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose Proposals are most advantageous of the County may be invited to appear before the Board for 
an oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Contractor shall sign and file with the County, within ten (10) days after Notice 

of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 

Protests 

Only other Contractors who have submitted a bid proposal have the right to protest.  A protest of an award must 
be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing and must 
include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, 
Arizona  85501. 

 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 13 
 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 
 
Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  Contractor shall 
maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits required for the operation of the 
business conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations 
under the act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 14 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
 

 
EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACT AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as an example of the contract agreement to any Contractor, their agents, subcontractors 
or representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the County, by submitting Proposals to this 
or any other solicitation requiring sealed Proposals, does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of 
acceptance of these provisions will be the Contractor’s signature(s) appearing on all forms contained on pages 
24 through 33. 

 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The County maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to the County any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 

Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the Request for Proposal issued by the County and the offer submitted by the 
Contractor in response to the RFP.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, specifications 
and other requirements set forth within the text of the RFP.  The County reserves the right to clarify any 
contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, 
as determined by the County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract 
shall contain the entire agreement between Gila County and the Contractor relating to these requirements and 
shall prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master 
agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Board of Supervisors.  No 
alteration of any portion of the contract, any items or services awarded, or any other agreement that is based 
upon this contract may be made without express written approval of Gila County in the form of an official 
contract amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the Contractor or any agency is a 
violation of the County Procurement Code.  Any such action is subject to the legal and contractual remedies 
available to the County inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, suspension and, or debarment of the 
Contractor. 

 

Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 15 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 
 
 

Contract Default 

A. The County, by written notice of default to the Contractor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances: 

 
1. If  the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the services within the times 

specified; or 
 

2. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the County terminates this contract in whole or part, the County may procure supplies or 

services similar to those terminated, and the Contractor shall be liable to the County for any excess costs 
for such similar supplies or services. 

 

Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the event 
that a demand is made and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat 
this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and towns 
of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely acquisition 
and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The Contractor to whom this contract is awarded may be 
requested by other parties of said interactive purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the right to 
purchase supplies, equipment and services provided by the Contractor under this contract, pursuant to the terms 
and conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules and regulations 
of the respective entity and the approval of the Contractor. 
 

Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 

Termination of Contract 

The County, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time by mutual written consent, or by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice to you.  The County at its convenience, by written notice, may terminate 
this contract, in whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the County shall be liable only for payment under 
the payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received by the County 
before the effective date of termination. 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 16 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
 
The County reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Contractor to 
carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The County will issue a written ten (10) day notice of 
default to Contractor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the County, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions 
or services and specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the County, the Contractor attempts to impose on the County material products, or 
workmanship, which is of unacceptable quality.  

3. Contractor fails to furnish the required service or product within the time stipulated in the contract. 
4. In the opinion of the County, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the 

requirements of the contract or give the County a positive indication that Contractor will not or cannot 
perform to the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the County created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of County, State and 
Federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.   
 
If funds are not allocated by the County and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the 
contract period for the service may be terminated by the County at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The County shall notify the Contractor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by 
a shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the County in the event this provision is exercised, and the County 
shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of termination under 
this paragraph. 
 
 
Indemnification Clause 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation 
and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss 
or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent 
or willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or 
subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ 
Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, 
statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee 
shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that the Contractor 
will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs. 
 
Israel Boycott Certification Clause 
 
Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in and will not, for the duration of this agreement, 
engage in, a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this certification by Contractor may 
result in action by County up to and including termination of this Agreement. 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 17 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
General 

After receipt of all proposals, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned proposals, unacknowledged Addenda, incomplete proposals, non-conformance with 
mandatory requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
Subsequent to the initial review, all remaining proposals shall be reviewed by the Gila County Finance 
Department to evaluate the information submitted, perform tests when necessary and make comparisons in 
order to approve or reject the Request.  If rejected, the purchasing department shall give written notice to the 
Bidder submitting this request. 

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their 
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance 
against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way limit the 
indemnity covenants contained in this Contract.  The County in no way warrants that the minimum limits 
contained herein are sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance 
of the work under this contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors and 
Contractor is free to purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 
 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of liability 

not less than those stated below. 
 

1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage. 

• General Aggregate $2,000,000 

• Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

• Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

• Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The County of 
Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the activities 
performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor". 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 18 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 

PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
2. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 
 

 
3. Automobile Liability 

Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used 
in the performance of this Contract. 
 Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

 
 

4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability) 
 Each Claim $1,000,000 
 Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

a. In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this Contract is written on a 
claims-made basis, Contractor warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede 
the effective date of this Contract; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an 
extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years beginning at the time 
work under this Contract is completed. 

 

B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the 
following provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of Gila 
shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those 
limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2 The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect to 
all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract 

shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or 
endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the County.  
Such notice shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 
or and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved 

unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  The 
County in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the 
Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 19 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 

PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the County with certificates of insurance (ACORD 

form or equivalent approved by the County) as required by this Contract.  The certificates for each 
insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work 

commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or prior to 
commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  Failure 
to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a 
material breach of contract.   

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 

E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 or email to bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov. The County project or contract number 
and project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The County reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required by this Contract at any time.   

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insured’s 

under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the County separate certificates and endorsements for 
each subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements 
identified above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Contract shall be made 

by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal Contract 
amendment, but may be made by administrative action. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 20 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 

PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS – PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Purpose 
It is the intent of this Invitation for Proposals to enter into a contract with a qualified Contractor to provide 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL for Gila County.  
 

This specification is intended to describe the type, size, and quality, which will best meet the demands of the 
using department.  It is NOT intended to favor any one brand or make.  The mention of brand names or 
components merely serves to specify the quality or general type required. 

 
 
SECTION 1.0 
 
General Purpose 

 
1.1 All Proposals must represent the entire package.  Partial awards will not be made unless otherwise 

stated in the Proposal specifications. 
 
1.2 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of County needs and in no event shall the County be obligated to purchase the exact 
quantities of any item set forth in the Proposal.  The County does not guarantee any maximum or 
minimum amounts of purchase. 

 
1.3 Contractor shall review its Proposal submission to assure the following requirements are met. 

 
1.3.1 One (1) original and two (2) copies, total of three (3), all with original signatures, shall be 

submitted at time of bid opening. 
1.3.2 Qualification and Certification Form (page 23-24) 
1.3.3 Price Sheet (page 25) 
1.3.4 References List (page 26) 
1.3.5 No Collusion Certification (page 27) 
1.3.6 Certification Regarding Debarment (page 28) 
1.3.7 Intentions Concerning Subcontracting (page 29) 
1.3.8 Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance (page 30) 
1.3.9 Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment (page 31) 
1.3.10 Offer Page (page 32) 
1.3.11 Acceptance of Offer (page 33) 

 
 

 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 21 
 

 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
Minimum Specifications continued…. 
 
 
 

SECTION 2.0 

Drug Price List 
2.1 This list is based upon the Preferred Drug Formulary used by the Gila County Jail and represents 

medications commonly prescribed for Gila County Jail inmates. There is an average of 55 prescriptions 
filled per month. 

 
2.2 The quantities and types of medications listed in the bid represent Gila County’s estimated 

requirements. Gila County will be neither obligated by, nor restricted to, the quantity and types of 
medications listed. The list is provided for bidding purposes only.  Gila County reserves the right to 
update the formulary as medical needs dictate.  

 
2.3 All drugs provided shall meet or exceed standard pharmaceutical quality specifications for prescription 

drugs and medications. Any brands specified in this bid are solely for the purpose of indicating the 
standard of quality and performance for the intended use. 

 
2.4 The County desires the generic form of any drug ordered whenever possible, even when the order is 

by brand. However, generic brands supplied must be recognized within the industry as standard. 
 
2.5 Bidders are requested to provide pricing for this list, based on their pricing as of January 1, 2020. 

Pricing is to include the pharmacy’s cost, the prescription fee, and the total proposed cost to the 
County for each drug listed. The prescription quoted for each drug is to include all charges to the 
County over and above the cost of the drug or medication to the supplier. This fee shall be full 
compensation for the service provided, including all labor, packaging, delivery, tax (except as noted 
below), overhead, profit margin, and all other costs whatsoever in any way related to the providing of 
this service to the County. 

 
2.6 The Pharmacy Prescription fees quoted will remain unchanged through December 31, 2020. The price 

of each prescription to the county is to be comprised of cost, plus fees, plus applicable taxes. Upon 
receipt of a valid invoice, Gila County will pay State Sales Tax as required. For bidding purposes, 
however, do not include Arizona State Sales Tax in price quoted. 

 
2.7 For bid comparison purposes, potency, unit, and quantity per prescription must be as listed. If 

changing any of these factors for any item, bidder must plainly indicated on the bid form. 
 
2.8 For purposes of bid evaluation, item on this list which are not bid will be penalized by adding 10% to 

the highest bid on the like item, and adding that amount to the non-responsive bidders’ total. 
 

 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 22 
 

 

 

SECTION 3.0 

Proposal Pricing & Term 

3.1 Prices shall be in effect for the duration of the contract period.  Contractor shall incorporate all profit 
and discount into their price.  The exception will be any price reduction, which will be applied to the 
contract immediately upon the Contractor’s or Gila County’s discovery of any such price reduction. 

 
3.2 The term of the contract shall commence on _____, 202__ and shall remain in effect for one year from 

the date of award.  The County shall have the option to renew the contract for three (3) additional one 
(1) year periods upon agreement of both parties. 

 
3.3 Profit costs may be negotiated should the Contractor provide information indicating the necessity for 

such price increases and must meet the Board of Supervisor’s approval by an amendment to the contract 
prior to any such extension.  

 

 

SECTION 4.0 

Evaluation of Proposal and Negotiations 

4.1 The Finance Director may appoint a selection committee to evaluate the proposals and make a 

recommendation based on the criteria set forth in the Request for Proposals.  The Board of Supervisors 

shall not act in capacity of the selection committee.  Proposals shall be evaluated on the factors set 

forth in the Request for Proposals. 

 
For the purpose of conducting Negotiations, the County shall determine what Proposals are susceptible 
for being selected for award.  A determination that a Proposal is unacceptable shall be in writing, state 
the basis of the determination and be retained in the County files.  If it is determined a Proposal is not 
reasonably susceptible of being selected for Award, the Contractor shall be notified and shall not be 
afforded an opportunity to modify its Proposal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 23 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 

PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
EXHIBIT “D” Bidder Qualifications and Certification 
 
Purpose 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of Contractors 
under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 
Contract Number 050420 PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL 
 
The applicant submitting this Proposal warrants the following: 
 
1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 

________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, and the 
reasons Contractor failed to perform in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 
contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractors disqualification, and whether this disqualification 
remains in effect in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
4. Has a contracting agency ever terminated a contract for cause with Contractor (under your Contractor’s 

present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details including the date, the 
contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was terminated in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
5. Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   

a. A brief history of the Contractor. 
b. A Cost Proposal shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of 

this contract by this reference. 
c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar to the Scope 

of Services described herein; shall be submitted on the Reference List, attached hereon and 
made a full part of this contract by this reference. 

d. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified services. 
e. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 

 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 24 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 

PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
Qualification & Certification continued…. 

 

 
6. Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona:  _____________________________ 

                                     (If Applicable) 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a business’ computed 
loss ratio and determine a factor, which when multiplied by premium, can reward policyholders with lower 
losses.  E-mod rate may be a determining factor in bid award. 

 

7. Current Contractor Business Arizona License Number:  __________________________________ 
(If Applicable) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 25 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
 

PRICE SHEET 

Please complete price sheet in its entirety for the services provided in RFP 050420 PHARMACY SERVICES FOR 
GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL.   

 

 

Contractor Name:  _____________________________________            Phone No.:  __________________ 
 

 

    
 

 

 
 

COSTS 

 

Annual Rate 
 
(Contractor shall be paid per 
monthly expenditure report.  
Monthly expenditure report to be 
submitted to Gila County by the 15th 
of the following month) 
 
 

 

$ _________________ 
 
 

  

 

TOTAL COST 

 

$ _________________ 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
**All applicable taxes shall be included in proposed amount. 
 
 

      
 ________________________________________ 

       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 26 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 

PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
REFERENCE LIST 

These references are required to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of the Contractor under 
consideration for final award.       
 
References 

Please list a minimum of three (3) references for contracts of similar size and scope as this Request for Proposals 
during the past twenty-four (24) months, in or as close to Gila County as possible.  Bidder may attach further 
reference information as necessary. 
 

1. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

    _______________________________________________________________ 

                 _______________________________________________________________  

 

2. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                   _______________________________________________________________ 

 

3. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                               _______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
        ________________________________________ 

           Name of Business 

                                                                                                    ________________________________________ 
           Signature of Authorized Representative 

                                                                                                    ________________________________________ 
           Title 

 

 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 27 
 

 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 

PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
 

AFFIDAVIT BY BIDDER 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF GILA  ) 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Individual) 
 

being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he or she is ___________________________________________________________________________ 

(Title) 
 
Of _____________________________________________________________________________  and 

(Name of Business) 
 

 That he or she is submitting a proposal on PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION 
MEDICAL, RFP NO. 050420 and, 
 
 That pursuant to Section 112 (C) of Title 23 USC, he certifies as follows: 
 
 That neither he nor anyone associated with the said ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of Business) 
 

has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise taken any action 
in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the above mentioned service. 
   
      ____________________________________________ 
      Name of Business 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      By 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
       
Subscribed and sworn to before me this _________ day of ____________________________, 2020. 
 
__________________________________ My Commission expires:  ______________________ 
Notary Public 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 28 
 

 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

 
The prospective participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 

 
(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
(b) Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a 

civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes or commission or embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government 
entity (Federal, State, or local with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default 

 
I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal 
or termination of the award.  IN addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in a 
fine of up to $10,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both. 

 
 
 

Typed Name and Title of Authorized Representative 

 
 
 
 

Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

 I am unable to certify the above statements.  My explanation is attached. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 29 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 

PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
 

CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING 
 
 
 At the time of the submission of bids on Bid No. 050420 PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY 
DETENTION MEDICAL, my intention concerning subcontracting a portion of the work is as indicated below. 
 
 A list of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must accompany the Bid.  
The list must include the subcontractors name, address, phone number, and Arizona ROC.  List must be provided 
in a sealed envelope marked “List of Subcontractors”. 

 
 
 
 
 

     YES, it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 

     NO,   it is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 30 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 

PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 
 

Contractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract  comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further ensure that each 
subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract likewise complies with the State and 
Federal Immigration Laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any subcontractor in 
order to verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.   
 
 Any breach of Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and Federal 
Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this 
Contract subjecting Contractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract. If the 
breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Contractor shall be 
required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been 
provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to delay 
delivery of services.   
 
 Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of County’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this 
Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:  “Subcontractor hereby 
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor 
further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records to insure that Subcontractor is in 
compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed to be a 
material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 
responsibility of Contractor. 
 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 31 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 

PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
 

BIDDER CHECKLIST  &  ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all Bid Documents shall be completed and executed and submitted with this RFP.  
If Contractor fails to complete or execute any portion of the Bid documents, all with original signatures, the RFP 
may be determined to be “non-responsive” and rejected. 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT      COMPLETED / EXECUTED 
 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM              ______________ 

PRICE SHEET              ______________ 

REFERENCE LIST             ______________ 

NO COLLUSION FORM            ______________ 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT          ______________ 

INTENTIONS IN SUBCONTRACTING           ______________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE          ______________ 

CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT          ______________ 

OFFER PAGE              ______________ 

      
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 

 

    #1  #2             #3             #4           #5 

Initials         ________        ________          ________              ________          ________ 

Date         ________             ________          ________              ________          ________  
 

 

Signed and dated this _________ day of ______________________, 2020 
 
           ______________________________________ 
                                      Contractor: 

           ______________________________________ 
                                By:   
 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Finance Department, Gila County and bearing the following 
statement on the outside of the envelope:  Request for Sealed Proposals:  Bid No. 050420 PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA 
COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL.  All proposals shall be filed with the Gila County Finance Department Division in the Copper 
Building at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ on or before July 1, 2020, by 2:00 PM. 

 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 32 
 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
 

OFFER PAGE  

TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and 
conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this Request for Proposal document. 
 
Signature also certifies the Contractors bid proposal is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that 
the bid proposal is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Contractor submitting 
the proposal has not revealed the contents of the proposal to, or in any way colluded with, any other Contractor 
which may compete for the contract; and that no other Contractor which may compete for the contract has 
revealed the contents of a proposal to, or in any way colluded with, the Contractor submitting this proposal. 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  050420 PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL 
 
 
 
Contractor Submitting Proposal:    For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________  Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
________________________________________  Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   
       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
Proposal must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 050420/PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION-MEDICAL Page 33 
 

 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 050420 
PHARMACY SERVICES FOR GILA COUNTY DETENTION MEDICAL   

 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
(For Gila County use only) 

 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Contractor                         is now bound to provide the materials or services listed 

in RFP No.: 050420 including all terms and conditions, specifications, amendments, etc. and the Contractor’s 

Offer as accepted by County/public entity. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as    Contract No. 050420   . The Contractor has been cautioned 

not to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this Contract until Contractor 

receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this contract, each which shall include original 
signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties 
hereinabove named, on this __________________ day of _________________________________, 2020. 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:    CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
              
Woody Cline, Chairman of the Board             Authorized Signature 
 
 
ATTEST:              
        Print Name 
 
         
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
The Gila County Attorney’s Office 
 

 



   
ARF-6083   Regular Agenda Item     2. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/02/2020  
Submitted For: Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager/Librarian 
Submitted By: Cathy Melvin, Executive Assistant
Department: Board of Supervisors-District 3

Information
Request/Subject
Submit a comment letter to Director of United States Fish and Wildlife
Service regarding the Revision to the Nonessential Experimental
Population of the Mexican Wolf; Environmental Impact Statement.

Background Information
On April 15, 2020, the United States Fish and Wildlife Service opened the
comment period regarding the preparation of a Draft Environmental
Impact Statement Supplement in conjunction with a proposed rule to
revise the existing non-essential experimental population designation of
the Mexican Wolf under section 10 (j) of the Endangered Species Act of
1973 as amended. The comment period closes on June 15, 2020.

Evaluation
The Mexican Wolf issue continues to be a serious concern to Gila County
citizens. The revised Rule and Environmental Impact Statement
Supplement are being developed by the United States Fish and Wildlife
Service in response to a court-ordered remand by the District Court of
Arizona of the 2015 final rule to revise the nonessential experimental
population designation and management of Mexican Wolves in the
Mexican Wolf Experimental Population Area in Arizona and New Mexico.

Conclusion
It is important for the Gila County Board of Supervisors to comment on
the four topic areas outlined in the Federal Register 50 CFR Part 17
published on April 15, 2020.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve the
prepared comment letter to the United States Fish and Wildlife Service.

Suggested Motion



Information/Discussion/Action to approve the submission of a letter to
the United States Fish and Wildlife Service regarding the proposed Draft
Environmental Impact Statement Supplement, in conjunction with a
proposed rule to revise the existing nonessential experimental population
designation of the Mexican wolf under section 10(j) of the Endangered
Species Act of 1973, as amended. (Jacque Sanders)

Attachments
Comment Letter - Mexican Wolf



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
June 2, 2020 
     
Submitted via http://www.regulations.gov 
Docket No. FWS–R2–ES–2020–0007 
 
Public Comments Processing 
Attn: FWS–R2–ES–2020–0007 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
MS: PRB/PERMA (JAO/1N), 
5275 Leesburg Pike, Falls Church, VA 22041–3803 

 

RE: Gila County comments on the FWS–R2–ES–2020–0007, Revision to the Nonessential 
Experimental Population of the Mexican Wolf (Canis lupus baileyi); Environmental Impact 
Statement 

Dear Sirs and Madams: 

General Scoping Comments 

The scope of analysis should include: 

1. Analysis of the economic, physical and mental impacts on ranching families; 

2. Analysis of the economic impacts on the hunting and guiding and other recreational 
activities; 

3. Analysis of the impacts on the game populations in the areas of wolf release and dispersal; 
4. Analysis of the impacts on allotment owners preexisting surface rights on federal lands. 

 

Issue 2: Cascading from the above impacts to ranching, hunting and guiding and recreational 
activities has been reductions in direct and indirect tax revenues to the states, tribal and local 
governments. 

The scope of this analysis should include: 

1.   Analysis of the reduction in state and local government tax revenues in New Mexico from 
the reduction of livestock head taxes; 

2.   Analysis of the reduction state and local government tax revenues from circulating dollars 
through the loss of ranching operations forced out of business to include feed sales, cattle 
hauling to market, sales rings, fuel sales, restaurants, and other local businesses; 

Tommie C. Martin, District I 

610 E. Hwy 260, Payson, 85547 

(928) 402-8753 

(800) 304-4452, ext.7100 

tmartin@gilacountyaz.gov 

 

Tim R. Humphrey, District II 

(928) 425-3231 

thumphrey@gilacountyaz.gov  
 

Woody Cline, District III 

(928) 402-4401 

wcline@gilacountyaz.gov  
 
 
 

 

W. James Menlove,  

County Manager 

(928) 402-4257 

jmenlove@gilacountyaz.gov 

 

 

Marian Sheppard, 

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

(928) 402-8757 

msheppard@gilacountyaz.gov 

  
 
 

 

GILA COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

1400 E. Ash Street 

Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

http://www.regulations.gov/
mailto:tmartin
mailto:thumphrey@gilacountyaz.gov
mailto:wcline@gilacountyaz.gov


Gila County 
 

2 
 

3.   Analysis of the reduction state and local government tax revenues from circulating dollars 
through the reduction of hunting and guiding and recreation opportunities due to impacts 
on game populations affecting fuel sales, motel revenues, restaurants; 

4.   Analysis of the reduction state and local government tax revenues from circulating dollars 
through the reduction of recreation opportunities due to forest BLM land closures of 
developed and dispersal camping affecting restaurants, motels, food and equipment and 
fuel sales. 

Specific Comments Requests on the Narrow Range of Topics 

“(1) The benefits or potential impacts to the Mexican wolf or the public and our partners of an 
‘‘essential’’ versus ‘‘nonessential’’ designation.” 

Factors that must be considered by the Secretary in making the finding that the designation will 
“further the conservation of [the] species” include: 

(1) Any possible adverse effects on extant populations of a species as a result of removal of 
individuals, eggs, or propagules for introduction elsewhere; 

(2) The likelihood that any such experimental population will become established and survive in the 
foreseeable future; 

(3) The relative effects that establishment of an experimental population will have on the recovery 
of the species; and 

(4) The extent to which the introduced population may be affected by existing or anticipated 
Federal or State actions or private activities within or adjacent to the experimental population area. 

“Essential” means the experimental population’s loss “would be likely to appreciably reduce the 
likelihood of the survival of the species in the wild.” 50 C.F.R. § 17.80(b). All other populations are 
to be classified as “nonessential.” Id. 

In the 2015 rule FWS reasoned that because the purpose of the 2015 rule is to revise management 
protocols for an existing population, reconsideration of the population’s nonessential status was 
“outside the scope” of the rulemaking. Gila County concurs with that rationale. We felt that due to 
the expanded numbers of the captive population there was no likelihood the entire subspecies 
would be placed in jeopardy of extinction. This would be true even if all of the Mexican wolves in 
the wild failed to reproduce and had a total population collapse. This of course has not occurred 
and the population in the wild has continued to increase in numbers and dispersal throughout the 
recovery area. 

Scoping Issues on This Item: 

1. The nonessential designation needs to be retained. The Court erred by relying on a 
statement in the record “a group of scientists informed FWS, through submission of a 
formal public comment, that FWS misstated and misinterpreted the scientists’ findings.” 
The scientist’s findings were based on modeling that has now been discredited by the on-
the ground evidence of the success of cross-fostering and successful releases into the wild 
from captive populations. This error leads to the false reasoning that the essential 
designation is required to support a successful recovery of the Mexican wolf; 

2. The scientist’s significant misrepresentation in their evaluation fails to take into account the 
extremely low number of foundation members. Gila County has long held that due to the 
low numbers of founding members that the genetic viability of the captive and wild 
populations has always been in jeopardy; 

3. The statutory definition of essential is plain on its face. The loss of the experimental 



Gila County 
 

3 
 

population in the wild due to a lack of genetic variability is not occurring. The captive 
population is being managed to maintain what little genetic variability that has ever 
existed; 

4. Our conclusion is that maintenance of the nonessential status would not be likely to 
appreciably reduce the likelihood of the survival of the species in the wild. 

5. From the Judge’s decision, “Whether a population is designated “essential” or 
“nonessential” affects whether federal agencies have a duty to consult with FWS on certain 
federal actions under ESA Section 7(a)(2). Where a population is designated “nonessential,” 
federal agencies are not required to formally consult with FWS on actions likely to 
jeopardize the continued existence of the species. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2). Instead, federal 
agencies must engage in a conferral process that results in conservation recommendations 
that are not binding upon the agency. Id. § 1536(a)(4). Additionally, the Secretary may not 
designate critical habitat for an experimental population designated as nonessential. Id. § 
1539(j)(2)(C)(ii). To date, the “essential” designation has never been applied to an 
experimental population of any species.” The potential impacts from essential classification 
that require analysis are: 

a. Increase of Service and other federal agencies personnel to do the formal 
consultations; 

b. Delays of permit application processing; 
c. Effects need to be analyzed on grazing allotment pre-existing rights and other 

activities on federal lands due to making the essential designation. 

(2) Aligning the population objective and release recommendations in the new revised rule with 
the recovery criteria in the revised recovery plan for the MWEPA to ensure the new revised rule 
supports the long-term conservation and recovery of the Mexican wolf. 

Scoping Issues on This Item: 

1. Further analysis and statements need to delve into the fact that Mexican wolves were 
rarely detected above Interstate 10 in the southern U.S. portion of their historic range. The 
historic range in the U.S. is only 10% of this historic range with the historic range being 90% 
in Mexico. Canis lupus mogollonensis did occupy what is now being used for the 
reintroduction of the Mexican wolf; 

2. The Court concluded that, “the population size and effective migration rate, which do not 
further the conservation of the species, are arbitrary and capricious.” Analysis should take 
into account the above historic range. There should be extensive discussion in the analysis 
of what is being proposed for Mexican wolf numbers in the southwestern far exceeds their 
historic range occupation; 

3. Analysis should focus on recovery of the Mexican wolf in its historic range of Mexico. This 
would be more in line with long range conservation and recovery of the Mexican wolf in its 
historic range; 

4. Analysis should take into account that with the increase of numbers of wolves in the 
current allowed release areas there has been a corresponding increase in livestock 
depredations. There has been no increase in wolf management personnel at the local, state 
or federal level. The analysis should include a determination of: 

a.  How many Service, local government, state government and other federal agency 
personnel need to be increased in order to properly manage the increased 
numbers; 

b. Whether or not wolves have already saturated the habitat within BRWRA, MWEPA 
and occupied dispersal areas and therefore further releases in these locations do 



Gila County 
 

4 
 

not further the conservation or recovery of the species; 
c. Analysis needs to provide disclosure of how the Service intends to secure increases 

in funding to provide reasonable compensation for livestock depredations; 
d. Analysis needs to disclose how many increased Service, USDA Wildlife Services and 

state and local government personnel will have to be brought on to properly 
investigate and make determinations for livestock depredations; 

(3) Management provisions to facilitate the ability to achieve the genetic recovery criterion for 
the MWEPA which serves the long-term conservation and recovery plan target. 

Scoping Issues on This Item: 

1. As stated above in Item (1), 2. the genetic problem stems from the small number of 
founding members. Even with the releases over the last four decades and the institution of 
cross-fostering Mexican wolves in the wild continue their downward spiral as stated in the 
recovery plan. It is understood from conservation biologists and environmental activist 
discussions that the desire is to expand Mexican wolves occupied territory northward to 
meet up with Northern timer wolf populations. The objective as stated is to improve the 
genetic vigor necessary to halt the downward spiral. What is not discussed in this objective 
is that the resulting cross breeding will dilute and eventually swamp Mexican wolf genetic 
distinction. We hold this would be a violation of the Endangered Species Act. Analysis of 
this issue should include: 

a. An explanation why after four decades of breeding genetic viability does not exist 
in the wild population in combination with the captive population; 

b. Determination of the effect on the Mexican wolf species if they are released or 
they are allowed to disperse above Interstate 40 and intermingle with timber 
wolves migrating from the north; 

c. An examination of a “release [of] a sufficient number of captive Mexican wolves to 
result in 22 released Mexican wolves surviving to breeding age in the MWEPA.” 
This needs to take a hard look at how the Service intends to monitor these releases 
and proposed benefit to genetic vigor; 

d. A detailed statement why releases and recovery effort is not concentrated in 
Mexico. Until the 90% of the historic range is occupied by a self-sustaining 
population it is absurd to envision a successful recovery of the species. Supporting 

this contention is the statement quoted in the Judge’s opinion, “FWS has also 

recognized that the future success of the Mexican wolf “is likely to 

depend on the establishment of a metapopulation or several semi-

disjunct populations spanning a significant portion of its historic range 

in the region.” (2015 10(j) Rule at FR000175.)” (Emphasis added) 
2. The County disagrees with the Judge’s finding that the expanded take provisions lack 

protections for the loss of genetic diversity. The following are our comments on the three 
issues identified for further analysis: 

a. Take on non-Federal lands in conjunction with a removal action as described in the 
2015 rule. If a livestock owner is experiencing depredation or a family or 
community has wolves endangering residents, then this take provision needs to 
remain in effect. Endangerment of persons and property needs to have an 
appropriate response. This provision needs to be in alignment with the ESA 
provision that allows a take when a person or their property is in eminent threat. 
This provision also needs to be in alignment with the fourth and fifth amendment 



Gila County 
 

5 
 

to the Constitution. Removal of offending and obviously habituated wolves is an 
option to lethal takes. Genetic diversity is not an excuse to permit serious impacts 
to persons or property. Allowing wolves to remain and continue unacceptable 
behavior on non-federal lands merely encourages bad behavior and transmitting 
that behavior to the offending pack. For these reasons there needs to be a return 
to the three strikes rule with an inclusion that prevents livestock depredating 
wolves from being relocated into occupied livestock grazing allotments. 

b. Takes on Federal land should continue as the 2015 rule directs when wolf behavior 
described above occurs. In addition, the three strikes rule and prohibition of 
translocation of depredating wolves to occupied livestock grazing allotments. 

c. The 2015 rule should continue for takes resulting to impacts to a wild ungulate 
herd. Gila County is concerned that eliminating this provision could have serious 
impacts on the ecosystems and species dependent on those ecosystems. It is hard 
to imagine that Congress desired placing additional species in jeopardy of 
extinction through experimentally introduced species. This is particularly troubling 
when introducing a species into habitats they historically never occupied and 
where even their rare presence has been removed through extirpation for many 
decades. With all wolf subspecies having been extirpated in the southwest, 
particularly in the Cochise, Coconino, Gila and Apache-Sitgreaves Forests those 
ecosystems have evolved and adapted without their presence. This is particularly 
true since humans and their survival activities are now occupying these habitats. If 
we continue on the current trends of increased wild ungulate depredations wolves 
will increase pressure on livestock. This will continue the downward spiral of 
ranching operations. With decreased grazing on allotments there will be a decrease 
in construction and maintenance of livestock water developments. The decrease in 
water availability will compound the impacts on the wild ungulate populations. 
Analysis must include an examination of these ecosystem impacts. Analysis also 
needs to include impacts on game department revenues from hunting licenses, 
state and local government tax revenue loss from reduced hunting and outfitter 
and guide activities. 

(4) Comments on proposals to update data, information, and analyses pertinent to any of the 
revisions under consideration in the new revised rule. 

Scoping Issues on This Item: 

1. Modification of the Purpose and Need of the 2014 EIS only as necessary to explain the role 
of the MWEPA in the recovery of the Mexican wolf, based on the revised recovery plan. The 
following are our comments and identified issues on modification of the Purpose and Need: 

a. Gila County commends the Service in a better explanation of the role of the 
MWEPA. However, we are concerned about total reliance on the recovery plan for 
possible changes. The recovery plan team was made up of primarily wolf 
introduction advocates. We believe that recovery direction should be directed by a 
more rigorous scientific inquiry. An examination team should be a multi-discipline 
effort rather than exclusively wolf biologists. This effort should also be subjected to 
a rigorous multi-discipline peer review. 

2. The following are our comments and identified issues on proposed changes for Alternative 
One (Proposed Action and Preferred Alternative), revision of the population objectives and 
release recommendations: 



Gila County 
 

6 
 

a. It is difficult to provide responsible comments without some kind of range of 
population numbers the Service is contemplating. We do note in the Judge’s ruling 
the citation of (2015 10(j) Rule at FR000138–39A). “[i]n the more immediate future, 
FWS may conduct additional releases in excess of 1–2 effective migrants per 
generation to address the high degree of relatedness of wolves in the current 
BRWRA.”[Emphasis Added] The assertion by the plaintiffs on this issue is that the 
Service were only going to release 1-2 effective migrants per generation. The Judge 
relied on this false assumption and the comments of Carroll, et al to rule in favor of 
the plaintiffs and label the Service’s decision arbitrary and capricious; 

b. In regard to revising any of the three forms of allowable take discussed please see 
our issues and comments in item (3) above. 

3. The following are our comments and identified issues on proposed changes for Alternative 
Two, we may revise any of the three forms of allowable take discussed above, consistent 
with revisions made in Alternative One: 

4. See the comments and issues identified in the above sub-issues 1. and 2.Gila County 
commends the Services proposal to provide updated data in the supplemental EIS at the 
relevant State or county level for Arizona and New Mexico to analyze the environmental 
consequences (i.e., effects or impacts) of our revisions on the land use, biological resources, 
economic activity, health and human safety, and environmental justice in the project area. 

 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors appreciates the opportunity to comment and requests to be 
kept informed and included in the process moving forward. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
             
Woody Cline       Date 
Chairman of the Board 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
 
             
Marian E. Sheppard      Date 
Clerk of the Board 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 

 
 



   
ARF-6073   Consent Agenda Item     3. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/02/2020  
Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Pleasant Valley Community Council, Inc. - Special Event Liquor License
Application for July 17, 2020, July 18, 2020, and July 19, 2020.

Background Information
A qualified organization may submit an application to serve liquor at a
special event for up to 10 days per year. The Arizona Department of
Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC) approves all liquor-related
applications; however, part of the DLLC's process requires that the local
governing body review the application and submit a recommendation for
approval or disapproval to the DLLC for any establishment located within
the jurisdiction of that local governing body.

Evaluation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has reviewed the application and
has determined that it has been filled out correctly.

Conclusion
This non-profit organization has properly completed the application and if
the Board of Supervisors approves the application, the Pleasant Valley
Community Council, Inc. will have used 3 days of the allowable 10 days
to serve liquor at a special event in 2020.

Recommendation
The Clerk recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
application.  Upon approval, the applicant has the responsibility to
submit the application to the DLLC for its final approval.  The Pleasant
Valley Community Council, Inc. has been informed that the DLLC is
currently accepting special event liquor license applications; however,
they are not being processed until Arizona Governor Doug Ducey issues
an executive order to allow the gathering of more than 10 people and the
DLLC Director gives subsequent authorization to process the applications.



Suggested Motion
Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by the
Pleasant Valley Community Council, Inc. for an event to be held on July
17, 2020, July 18, 2020, and July 19, 2020, at the Pleasant Valley
Community Center located in Young.

Attachments
Pleasant Valley Community Center - Application











   
ARF-6081   Consent Agenda Item     3. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/02/2020  
Reporting
Period:

BOS May 12, 2020 and May 19, 2020 BOS Meeting
Minutes

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk

Information
Subject
Board of Supervisors' May 12, 2020 and May 19, 2020 Meeting Minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Board of Supervisors' May 12, 2020 and May 19, 2020
meeting minutes.

Attachments
05-12-20 Meeting Minutes
05-19-20 Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 8 

 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 

GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
 

Date:  May 12, 2020 
 
WOODY CLINE       MARIAN SHEPPARD 

Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN          By: Marian Sheppard 

Vice-Chairman                                                             
 

TIM R. HUMPHREY      Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
PRESENT:  Woody Cline, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman (by 

phone); and Tim R. Humphrey, Member. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  James Menlove, County Manager; Homero Vela, Assistant 

County Manager; Charles Shire, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau (by 
phone); and Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board. 
 

Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Chairman Cline called the Work Session to order at 10:00 a.m. this date in the 
Board of Supervisors’ hearing room and Homero Vela led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.  Information/Discussion on current and future Public Works 
Department projects as outlined in the County's 5-Year Capital 

Improvement Plan. 
   
Steve Sanders, Public Works Department Director, advised that each of his 

Division Managers were present and would be providing information on their 
Division.  Darde De Roulhac, Floodplain Engineer, Gila County Floodplain 

District, stated that Floodplain Division staff have been discussing several past 
and upcoming projects with FEMA (Federal Emergency Management Agency).  
These projects are in addition to the routine issuance of floodplain use permits, 

and monitoring rainfall and streamflow to help alert residents of the potential 
for flooding.  Mr. De Roulhac proceeded to review these new projects, as 
follows:  1) LIDAR (Light Detection and Ranging), which is a remote sensing 

method that uses light in the form of a pulsed laser to measure ranges (variable 
distances) to Earth.  The LIDAR provides ground elevations throughout most of 



Page 2 of 8 

 

the developed areas of the County, excluding tribal lands.  This project was 
funded by FEMA and administered by the USGS (United States Geological 

Survey).  Mr. De Roulhac advised that it is a first step to being able to provide 
flooding elevations and extents so residents can build in a manner that 

protects life and property without excessive engineering costs for an additional 
project.  The County received the product data last year and copies of it were 
provided to the City of Globe and Town of Payson.  Each Board member 

commented that they often deal with complaints from residents on floodplain 
issues, so they are pleased that this data is available.  They thanked Mr. De 
Roulhac and his staff for their efforts.  2) The next step is the BLE (Base Level 

Engineering) project which will be funded by FEMA. This is a process for flood 
mapping areas that have only an approximate study (flood zone “A” which does 

not have flood elevations) or watercourses that have not yet been studied.  BLE 
uses the LIDAR data in a somewhat automated process to give flooding 
information at a greatly reduced cost, with accuracy (although not as much as 

a detailed study would have).  In summary, no base flood elevations or cross-
sections will be put on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps as a result of this BLE.  

Mr. De Roulhac added that a tentative request for the inclusion of unstudied 
watercourses has been submitted to FEMA for their consideration, should the 
Board of Supervisors decide to proceed with this project.  Supervisor 

Humphrey inquired if this data would prove FEMA wrong to which Mr. De 
Roulhac replied that could be possible.  Mr. De Roulhac stated, “We could 
eliminate some areas from the floodplain that were incorrectly mapped and 

may include new areas.”  Chairman Cline entered a discussion about the 
watersheds and tribes not being included in the LIDAR.  Mr. De Roulhac stated 

that FEMA negotiated that arrangement with the tribes; however, he doesn’t 
know who initiated it.  He added that the tribes won’t have the data to do BLEs 
so they would have to work with FEMA. Chairman Cline advised that he get 

information on the process regarding the tribes and LIDAR.  Each Board 
member thanked Mr. De Roulhac for the information. 
 

Kenneth Keith, Recycling and Landfill Manager, presented the following 
information for the Buckhead Mesa Landfill in Payson and Russell Gulch 

Landfill in Globe. 
   
Buckhead Mesa Landfill – Staffed by 1 supervisor, 3 senior operators, and 1 

scale house attendant.  Operations are Monday- Saturday from 8:00am – 
4:00pm.  

• 2019 tonnage-21,740.23  
• 2019 revenue-$1,074,486.24  
• 495 tons of metal was recycled  

• 2020 tonnage-3303.25 (Jan – March)  
• 2020 revenue-$151,519.10  
• Buckhead Mesa Landfill takes in an average annual tonnage of 21,000. With 

the expansion in the summer of 2018, the life of the Landfill use is estimated 
through the year 2025 with proper management.  



Page 3 of 8 

 

 
Dollar Day:  

• 2019-3714 vehicles with average Dollar Day being 309 per dollar day  
• 2019 tonnage-1,328.29 with an average tonnage of 110.69 per Dollar Day  

• Reduced revenue for the year 2019-$70,558.76  
• Year 2020 Dollar Day (January-March 2020)  
• 736 vehicles  

• 328.65 tons  
• Reduced revenue-$17,457.88 
 

Russell Gulch Landfill - Staffed by 1 supervisor, 3 senior operators, 1 operator, 
and 1 scale house attendant.  Operations are Monday- Saturday from 6:00am – 

4:00pm   
• 2019 tonnage-37,263.54  
• 2019 revenue-$1,081,211.34  

• 265 tons of metal was recycled  
• 2020 tonnage-14,379.51 (Jan – March)  

• 2020 revenue-$270,311.37  
• Russell Gulch Landfill tonnage has increased from an average annual 
tonnage of 21,500 of solid waste to the 2019 tonnage of 37,263.54. An 

expansion is planned in the next few years that will extend the use until 2034 
if properly managed. 
 

Dollar Day: 
• 2019-4,437 vehicles with average Dollar Day being 369 per Dollar Day  

• 2019 tonnage-1,412.51 with an average tonnage of 117.70 per Dollar Day  
• Lost revenue for the year 2019-$75,032.53  
• Year 2020 Dollar Day (January-March 2020)  

• 1061 vehicles  
• 290.93 tons  
• Lost revenue-$15,454.20  

 
The various cleanup events throughout the County were also reviewed and the 

Refurbished Bicycle Program of which 138 used bicycles were refurbished by  
Department of Corrections inmates and given away to deserving Gila County 
children at Christmas time.  For Earth Day 2019, 508 gift bags were handed 

out.   
 

Vice-Chairman Martin commented that recently there have been large numbers 
of visitors to northern Gila County, especially on weekends, due to the COVID-
19 pandemic.  She thanked Mr. Keith and his staff for placing temporary 

dumpsters and porta johns in Payson and Star Valley and attending to them.  
She asked Mr. Keith to track the amount of trash being collected at these 
dumpsters.  Supervisor Humphrey entered a discussion about resuming the 

Dollar Day Program, which allows anyone to dispose of garbage for a cost of $1 
per vehicle on the first Saturday of each month when the restrictions have been 



Page 4 of 8 

 

lifted due to the COVID-19 situation even though it is a loss of revenue to the 
County.  The specific monetary losses to each landfill were discussed.  The 

other Supervisors agreed that a lot of good has resulted from the program 
because many properties have been cleaned up.  Chairman Cline suggested 

issuing vouchers that could be used any day of the week instead of one 
Saturday per month to reduce the long wait time to enter the landfill.  He has 
learned that many people are no longer taking advantage of Dollar Day due to 

the long wait time.  He stated, “I see ways it can be changed to improve it and 
still meet the needs of the people.”  The Board briefly talked with Mr. Keith 
about the newly implemented Composting Program.  James Menlove, County 

Manager, talked about the many blighted areas within the County and he 
asked Mr. Keith to think of ways to utilize the landfills to clean up further 

blighted areas.  Mr. Sanders talked about ongoing negotiations with the U.S. 
Forest Service to acquire approximately 640 acres of Forest Service land to 
expand the Buckhead Mesa Landfill.  He is unsure if the transaction will be 

completed before the landfill runs out of space; however, should that occur, 
temporary arrangements are being made with the Forest Service.  Chairman 

Cline offered to talk with Forest Service staff to which Mr. Sanders replied that 
would be helpful.  Mr. Sanders added that not all of the 640 acres will be 
needed for the landfill expansion, so consideration should be given to utilizing 

it in the future to centralize County services.  The Board thanked Mr. Keith and 
Mr. Sanders. 
 

Glen Farnham, Public Works General Services Manager, presented information 
on the Vehicle Replacement Plan.  The Plan is based on best practices 

examples of like agencies in the public sector and the condition of the County’s 
fleet of vehicles.  He reviewed spreadsheets for General Fund fleet vehicles, 
General Fund Sheriff’s Office fleet vehicles, HURF (Highway User Revenue 

Fund) Public Works fleet vehicles, and Enterprise Fund Landfills’ fleet vehicles.  
The data collected for this exercise has been imported from the current 
AgileFleet fleet management software program as well as the historic data from 

the previous CFA fleet management software program.  Mr. Farnham proceeded 
to review the age, mileage, utilization, and annual maintenance costs for each 

of the various fleets as listed above. For FY 2021, it is recommended that 19 
vehicles should be replaced with new vehicles, as follows:   
 

• General Fund Fleet: A total of 5 vehicles at a cost of $205,800; these 5 
vehicles exceed 20 years of age and/or 200,000 miles or 100% of the cost of a 

replacement vehicle has been expended for maintenance on each. 
 
• General Fund Sheriff’s Office: A total of 5 marked patrol vehicles at a cost of 

$340,000; these 5 vehicles exceed 200,000 miles and 100% of the cost of 
replacement vehicles has been expended for maintenance on each. 
 

• Public Works HURF Fund: A total of 8 vehicles at a cost of $460,550; of these 
8 vehicles 2 are over 30 years old and 4 are over 20 years old. The remaining 2 



Page 5 of 8 

 

vehicles have accrued over or are very near 200,000 miles and 4 of the group 
have exceeded 100% of the cost of replacement vehicles has been expended for 

maintenance on each. 
 

• Enterprise Fund – Landfills: One vehicle at a cost of $35,000. This vehicle is 
18 years of age. 
 

Throughout the presentation, Mr. Farnham and Mr. Menlove answered 
questions from the Board members.  Each Board member thanked Mr. 
Farnham for the information. 

 
Mr. Sanders provided information on Public Works road projects for 2020 

through 2023.  He stated that the HURF 5-year projection slide was created 
prior to the COVID-19 situation when HURF revenues were increasing; 
however, adjustments are now being made anticipating there will be a 

reduction in future HURF revenues.  A summary of the work to be done and 
the current status of each project was provided, as follows: 

 
2020 for Design, Construction or Chip Seal Projects 
Colcord Road (bridge over Gordon Canyon); Gibson Ranch Road; Gisela Road; 

Mesa de Caballo (Mescalero/Caballero); Rim Trail Bridge; Roosevelt Resort-
Stagecoach Trail; Deer Creek Village; Kellner Canyon Road; Old State Route 
18-Punkin Center; Six Shooter Canyon Road; and Walnut Springs Subdivision. 

 
2021 for Design, Construction or Chip Seal Projects 

Cemetery Road; Golden Hill Road-Sidewalk Project; Main Street-Sidewalk 
Project; Walliman Road; Pine (chip seal north of SR 87); and Pine (south of SR 
87) 

 
2022 for Chip Seal Projects 
Strawberry (north of Fossil Creek Road); and Strawberry (south of Fossil Creek 

Road). 
 

2023 for Design or Chip Seal Projects 
Cline Boulevard-Ewing Trail; Control Road; and Houston Mesa Road. 
 

Vice-Chairman Martin commented on the need to complete all these projects, 
especially Colcord Road.  Supervisor Humphrey thanked Mr. Sanders for using 

in-house staff on many of these projects. Chairman Cline agreed on the need to 
complete these projects and stated, “…but money will have a big influence on 
what we do next year.”  Mr. Menlove asked Mr. Sanders about grant 

opportunities.  Mr. Sanders replied that the BUILD grant application will be 
submitted this Friday for the Tonto Bridge Construction Project.  Another FLAT 
grant application will be submitted this date to extend paving on Forest Service 

512 Road.  Each Board member thanked Mr. Sanders and the Division 
Managers for the presentation. 



Page 6 of 8 

 

 
B.  Information/Discussion on current and future Facilities Management 

Department projects as outlined in the County's 5-Year Capital 
Improvement Plan.   

 
Homero Vela, Assistant County Manager, provided a slide presentation and 
reviewed current and future Facilities Management Department projects.  A 

summary is as follows:   
 
Payson Probation/Teen Center – This was a complete remodel of a 5,772 

square foot building that began on June 14, 2019 and was completed on 
December 12, 2019.  Most of the work was completed in-house with 

Maintenance and Probation personnel. Funding Source – Capital 
Projects/Juvenile Probation funds; Contractor’s Cost - $62,000 budgeted vs. 
$61,323 actual cost; and County Materials - $98,000 budgeted vs. $98,979 

actual cost. 
 

Northern Gila County Health Services Department Building – The project is a 
complete remodel of 3,000 square foot building that was the former NAPA parts 
store purchased by the County several years ago.  The floor and roof will be 

replaced, and the interior will be completely remodeled.  This building will 
house the Health Services Department, WIC (Women, Infants and Children) 
Program, and Animal Control. This project began on January 21, 2020, and 

construction is estimated to be completed by October 1, 2020.  To date, the 
project is 30% complete.  Funding Source – Capital Improvements funds; 

Contractor’s Cost - $210,800 budgeted vs. $184,630 actual to date expended; 
and County Materials - $138,780 budgeted vs. $26,568 actual to date 
expended.   

 
Globe Jail Renovation – The renovation will consist of 26,000 square feet which 
includes a roof replacement and the HVAC will be modernized.  This project 

began on May 20, 2020 and is estimated to be completed by September 30, 
2021.  Funding Source - Capital Improvements/Bond funds and expenditures 

will take place in FY 2020 and FY 2021; and Project Cost - $1,000,000 
budgeted vs. $3,362 actual to date expended. 
 

New Globe Animal Shelter – The new Animal Shelter will be 7,481 square feet 
under roof plus 730 square feet for the sally port.  It will have 27 dog kennels, 

20 cat cages, and equipped to function as an animal shelter of this size, 
including a surgical suite, sally port, administrative offices, greeting/adoption 
rooms, washer/dryer area, animal bathing, food storage, etc.  This project 

began on September 1, 2020, and is estimated to be completed by May 19, 
2021.  Funding Source – Capital Improvements/Bond funds; All-Inclusive Cost 
- $3,000,000 budgeted vs. $42,860 actual to date expended.  

 



Page 7 of 8 

 

New Payson Multi-Purpose Complex – The Multi-Purpose Complex will be 
11,000 square feet.  It will house the Board of Supervisors’ Office, Recorder’s 

Office, Assessor’s Office, Treasurer’s Office, and School Superintendent’s Office.  
This complex will also function as a Superior Court jury trial location.  The 

project also includes building a sally port at the current Payson Jail and a sally 
port and the new facility.  The project began on November 1, 2020 and is 
estimated to be completed by September 31, 2021.  Funding Source – Capital 

Improvements/Bond funds; All-Inclusive Cost - $4,770,000 budgeted vs. 
$7,594 actual to date expended.  
 

Michaelson Building Remodel – The two-story remodel will consist of 7,000 
square feet. This building will be turned into a business hub that is being 

completed in cooperation with the City of Globe, Freeport-McMoRan, and 
Capstone Mining.  Most of the remodel will be completed in-house with the 
assistance of the Department of Corrections inmate labor.  This project began 

on November 1, 2018 and is estimated to be completed by May 1, 2021.   
Funding Source – Capital Improvement/Grant funds; Contractor’s Cost - 

$200,000 budgeted vs. $424 actual to date expended; and County Materials - 
$100,000 budgeted vs. $3,016 actual to date expended.   
 

Payson Sheriff’s Office Remodel – The remodel will consist of 7,340 square feet.  
The administration offices will be remodeled, and the booking area, kitchen, 
and laundry will be relocated.  This project will begin on January 1, 2021 and 

is estimated to be completed by June 1, 2021.  Funding Source – Capital 
Improvements/Bond funds; Project Cost - $1,000,000 budgeted vs. $0 actual 

to date expended.  
 
Regional Drainage-Payson Building Complex - This project is to redesign and 

construct a new regional drainage plan per the current drainage plan outlined 
in the Town of Payson Master Drainage Plan 2000.  The area of concern for 
Gila County is the drainage in the parking lot of the new Gila County Health 

Services Department building.  The County has entered into an 
Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Payson whereby both entities 

will equally share the cost of $1,000,000 to do this project.  The project will 
begin on August 1, 2020 and is estimated to be completed on October 31, 
2020.  Funding Source – General Fund funds; Project Cost - $1,000,000 

($500,000 from Gila County and $500,000 from the Town of Payson) vs. $0 
actual to date expended.  

 
At the end of the presentation, Vice-Chairman Martin emphasized the need to 
remodel the administrative offices in Payson for the Sheriff’s Office.  Chairman 

Cline asked Mr. Vela and County Management to not lose focus of the County-
owned acreage that is located on Highway 260 in Payson as it is valuable land.  
Chairman Cline said that selling some or all of that property could generate 

substantial revenue to help fund these capital improvement projects.  Mr. Vela 
replied that he would work with County Manager James Menlove to get an 



Page 8 of 8 

 

appraisal done on the property.  Each Board member thanked Mr. Vela for the 
information.  

 
Item 3 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 

benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 

Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 

addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 

future date. 
 
There weren’t any comments from the public. 

 
Item 4 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-

431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented. 

 
Supervisors Martin, Humphrey and Cline and the County Manager presented a 
brief summary of current events.  

 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 

Chairman Cline adjourned the meeting at 12:56 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 10 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  May 19, 2020 

 
WOODY CLINE       MARIAN SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN          By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                             

 
TIM R. HUMPHREY      Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Woody Cline, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman (by 
phone); and Tim R. Humphrey, Member. 

 
STAFF PRESENT:  James Menlove, County Manager; Jacque Sanders, Deputy 
County Manager, District Librarian; Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County 

Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; and Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board. 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – INVOCATION 

 
Chairman Cline called the Regular Meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. this date in 

the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  J. Adam Shepherd led the Pledge of 
Allegiance and James Menlove delivered the invocation. 
 

Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 
 
A.  Public recognition of three employees through the County's Spotlight 

on Employees Program, as follows: Israel Juarez, Nicole Weaver, and Jerry 
Irish.  

 
Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant, Senior, advised that Nicole 
Weaver and Jerry Irish were unable to attend the meeting; therefore, she would 

present their Spotlight nominations at a future Board meeting.  She proceeded 
to read aloud a letter of nomination for Israel Juarez that was submitted by J. 

Adam Shepherd, Gila County Sheriff.  Deputy Juarez responded to a fire on 
Azurite Drive in Globe and helped a resident out of a burning house.  After 
learning that one of the homeowner’s dog was still inside the house, Deputy 

Juarez rescued the dog.  Deputy Juarez has been employed with the Sheriff’s 
Office for a little over a year.  Ms. Raymond presented Deputy Juarez with a gift 
card.  Deputy Juarez said a few words of thanks.  Each Board member also 

thanked Deputy Juarez for his courage and willingness to serve on the front 
lines. 



Page 2 of 10 

 

 
B.  Presentation of the University of Arizona's Gila County Cooperative 

Extension Office Annual Report and FY 2020-2021 Budget request to be 
considered for approval during Gila County's regular budget process.  

 
Richard (Rick) Gibson, Regional Director, is responsible for the Cooperative 
Extension programs in Gila County and Pinal County. He provided a slide 

presentation that highlighted the various Cooperative Extension activities in 
Gila County over the past year and stated, “It is important for us to give you a 
flavor of some of the things we are doing although it is not everything.”  There 

are 3 Cooperative Extension offices in Gila County:  Globe, Payson and San 
Carlos.  Mr. Gibson proceeded to review the following 7 program areas:  

Agriculture and Range Management, Animal Science, Natural Resources, 4-H 
Youth Development, Family Consumer Health Science, Horticulture, and Forest 
Health. He advised that Chris Jones presently covers horticulture and forest 

health; however, due to the workload that position needs to be split into two 
positions in the future.   

 
Mr. Gibson reviewed the University of Arizona (U of A) budget for the 
Cooperative Extension Program.  Each year Gila County budgets money for the 

Cooperative Extension Program and in recent years it has been $70,000 per 
year.  Mr. Gibson advised that the U of A receives state and federal funds, 
grant funds, and funding from the County which supports the program.  In 

2019, $448,505 of grant funds were received.  He added, “Most is spent on 
personnel who live in Gila County and many of our expenditures are made in 

Gila County.”  He advised that the $70,000 provided by Gila County is 
important as it is used for travel and operations and he requested the Board to 
provide the same amount of funding for FY 2021.  Mr. Gibson stated, “We have 

sufficient funds for our needs at this time, but there may be budget cuts 
coming in the future….Money from the County partnership allows us to have 
great flexibility and we feel comfort going into the future; we appreciate you for 

that.”  Mr. Gibson announced that he will be retiring from U of A on May 31st of 
this year and someone will replace him in the position.  He stated, “I appreciate 

working with this Board and people of Gila County over the past years.  I 
appreciated the welcome I received from the people in Gila County.  I feel 
comfortable telling you that you will have a great faculty and staff, even the 

newer agents, going forward.”  Each Board member commented that Mr. 
Gibson will be missed and wished him the very best in his retirement. 

 
C.  Presentation regarding Gila County financial data as of 3/31/2020 as 
it compares to the fiscal year 2020 Gila County Budget and fiscal year 

2019 year-to-date performance.  
 
Maryn Belling, Finance Department Budget Manager, advised that per a 

request of the Board, each month she presents financial updates to the Board.  
The staff report for this item contains the following information:  The Finance 



Page 3 of 10 

 

Department has analyzed the year-to-date performance of both revenues and 
expenditures as compared to the 2020 Fiscal Year Budget. This report contains 

General Fund fiscal data as of March 31, 2020, as follows:  Gila County’s 
General Fund revenues were at 63.32% of the annual budget. General Fund 

expenditures plus encumbrances were at 69% of the annual budget (65.25% 
for expenditures). Targeted % of the annual budget for both revenue and 
expense is 75%, so these ratios are slightly better than expected for 9 full 

months of activity. 

 
Ms. Belling stated, “Per our Treasurer, we are at 95% of property taxes received 

so far this year which is so much better than when we ran these reports at 
64%.”  She proceeded to review the graph for 9 months ending on March 31, 
2020.  The Board members thanked Ms. Belling for the information. 

 
Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 20-05-02 
which authorizes the Gila County Housing Authority to submit its Five-

Year Plan (FY 2020-2024) to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the 
accompanying certification form. 

 
Malissa Buzan, Community Services Department Director, advised that it is a 
requirement of the U.S. Department of Housing for housing authorities to 

submit a 5-Year Plan, which provides the Gila County Housing Authority a 
basis to run its Section 8 housing programs.  Ms. Buzan stated that the Plan 

must include a plan for violence against women, payment standards, etc.  She 
stated, “We have a resident board now consisting of 3 people from Payson, so 
we are ecstatic about that.”  Ms. Buzan added that if there are any changes to 

the Plan, the Gila County Housing Authority will prepare and include those 
changes in an annual plan which will be presented to the Board of Supervisors 

for approval.  Chairman Cline opened the public hearing.  There weren’t any 
comments so he closed the public hearing and asked for a Board motion.  
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Humphrey, 

the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 20-05-02 and authorized the 
Chairman's signature on the accompanying certification form.  (A copy of the 
resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office and 

attached to these minutes.) 
 

Item 4 - REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the distribution of 

$1,158,854.34 of Gila County's share of Federal Year 2020 Secure Rural 
Schools Act funds as authorized through section 24 of P.L. 114-10 for FY 



Page 4 of 10 

 

2019-2020 as follows: $25,000 to Roads, $903,026.84 to Schools, and 
$230,827.50 to Gila County Education Service Agency. 

Roy Sandoval, Gila County School Superintendent, advised that in the past the 
distribution has been allocated to roads and schools.  Beginning last year, 

funding was also provided to the Gila County Education Service Agency which 
supports the adult education program.  Mr. Sandoval stated, “It has become a 
robust program in Globe and Payson.”  Mr. Sandoval emphasized the 

importance of writing letters to Congress to continue receiving PILT (Payment 
in Lieu of Taxes) funding and stated that each year he writes letters.  Chairman 
Cline replied, “I’ve been to (Washington) D.C. in the past 2 years pushing for 

schools on the PILT payment.  We are only about 3% private (land) in our 
county.  We have to keep pushing on this and writing those letters as it’s a 

good amount of money.”  Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved the distribution of 
$1,158,854.34 of Gila County's share of Federal Year 2020 Secure Rural 

Schools Act funds as follows: $25,000 to Roads, $903,026.84 to Schools, and 
$230,827.50 to Gila County Education Service Agency. 

 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 20-05-03 
designating a portion of Houston Mesa Road as a no parking area. 

 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Department Director, presented this item. The 
following information is contained in the staff report for this item:  Gila County 

holds a Highway Easement Deed from the Federal Highway Administration for 
the Houston Mesa Road. The road is included in the County’s Maintained 

Roadway System. A traffic count from 2019 showed the average daily traffic to 
be 2842 vehicles. That number increases substantially during the summer and 
on weekends. Houston Mesa Road provides access to numerous communities 

north of Payson in the unincorporated area of Gila County. The road also 
provides access to the Tonto National Forest and the East Verde River. The 
river has become a destination for residents from all parts of the state. Due to 

the popularity of the location, the County has found that numerous people 
park along the road with no consideration to other users of the road, 

oftentimes creating a one-lane road. Emergency vehicles are having a difficult 
time navigating the road due to vehicles along the roadway.   
 

Mr. Sanders informed the Board that he received an email from the Fire Chief 
of the Water Wheel Fire District expressing his concern about vehicles parked 

on both sides of the roadway during the weekends, narrowing the roadway 
which would cause emergency vehicles to park in the road blocking traffic both 
directions should an emergency occur.  He added that the Payson District 

Ranger for the Tonto National Forest also supports the no parking request.  Mr. 
Sanders stated, “It has turned into a one-lane road and emergency responders 
worry about getting through.”  He added that parking areas owned by the U.S. 

Forest Service have been closed due to the COVID-19 pandemic because there 
aren’t enough personnel to regulate the use of it.  Mr. Sanders stated, “It is just 



Page 5 of 10 

 

people wanting to get right next to the river.  It is a heavily traveled road, 
almost 3,000 per day traveled.”  Supervisor Humphrey clarified that with the 

posting of no parking signs, it means that the Sheriff’s Office would be issuing 
citations which would result in subsequent fines for any violations to which 

Mr. Sanders replied that was correct.  Chairman Cline initiated a conversation 
on ways that the County could possibly help resolve this problem as he doesn’t 
believe issuing citations is the long-term solution.  J. Adam Shepherd, Gila 

County Sheriff, also expressed his concern regarding the ability for emergency 
personnel to respond quickly given the high amount of traffic and congestion 
on this road especially during weekends.  It was agreed that Mr. Sanders would 

contact Forest Service personnel to discuss partnering with the County to 
develop or find alternative parking.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 

seconded by Supervisor Humphrey, the Board unanimously adopted 
Resolution No. 20-05-03.  (A copy of the resolution is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office and attached to these minutes.) 

 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 1 to the 

Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the Town of Payson and Gila 
County, AZ for Centralized Management of 9-1-1 Grant Funds to extend 
the term of the IGA for one year; from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 

2021. 
 
Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer for the Sheriff”s Office, stated that 

this Amendment would renew the IGA that was approved by the Board of 
Supervisors last year.  Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by 

Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved Amendment No. 1 to 
the IGA between the Town of Payson and Gila County, AZ for Centralized 
Management of 9-1-1 Grant Funds. 

 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the budgeted and 
unbudgeted inter-fund transfers for FY 2019 in the amount of 

$467,519.18 from General Fund to Criminal Justice Enhancement Fund. 
 

Ms. Belling gave credit to Sheriff’s Office Chief Administrator Sarah White and 
her staff for the research conducted which helped identify the availability and 
proper use of this funding.  Ms. Belling stated, “They went back 8 years to find 

the total dollar amount…and to understand what the fund was for and why to 
come up with a way to restore this fund and bring it back into compliance.  

This was an unbudgeted transfer and we are coming to you.”   
 
The staff report for this item contained the following information:  Past 

practices for charging return to competency costs in the amount of 
$467,519.18 in Criminal Justice Enhancement Fund (CJEF) were not an 
appropriate use of funds and required reimbursement from the General Fund.   

CJEF funds are used for jail enhancement expenses and the funds that are 



Page 6 of 10 

 

reimbursed in the amount of $467,519.18 will be used for capital 
improvements to the Globe detention facility. 

 
Chairman Cline was pleased that the County is once again in compliance and 

he inquired if this money would be in addition to budgeted capital improvement 
project funds for the Globe detention facility.  James Menlove, County 
Manager, replied “Our intent is this can be used in lieu of bond money, $1.1M 

in Globe and $1.2M in Payson.”  Sheriff Shepherd added that this money could 
be used for jail maintenance and other maintenance/repair work that may 
arise without needing to request authorization from the Board to use General 

Fund money.  Upon motion Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved the budgeted and unbudgeted 

inter-fund transfers for FY 2019 in the amount of $467,519.18 from General 
Fund to Criminal Justice Enhancement Fund. 
 

E.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the 
purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number 305-10-022D and, if accepted, 

authorize the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed. 
 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, advised that the subject property is a 

small sliver of a road in Young.  The property adjoins Gila County Assessor’s 
parcel number 305-10-020B, which is owned by Russell Griffith and Janine 
Schmitz.  The lien amount for this property is $363.32. Should the Board 

accept the bid, Ms. Sheppard advised that the Griffiths intend to combine the 
parcels which she said would be a “win-win” for the County because the 

Assessor and Treasurer would have to issue fewer notices per year for each 
parcel.  Ms. Sheppard asked the Chairman for permission to open the sealed 
bid envelope which was granted.  She stated, “I have a bid on parcel number 

305-10-022D from Russell Griffith in the amount of $75.”  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously accepted a bid of $75 from Russell Griffith for the purchase of 

parcel number 305-10-020B and authorized the Chairman’s signature on the 
Quit Claim Deed. 

 
Item 5 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 

upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  

 
A.  Approval to adopt Resolution No. 20-05-04 authorizing Gila County 
Probation Department's participation in the FY 2020-2021 Family 

Counseling Program through the Arizona Supreme Court, Administrative 
Office of the Courts, Juvenile Justice Services Division, and certifying 
that a matching fund requirement of $1,944 for the Program will be 

provided by the County. (A copy of the resolution is permanently on file in the 
Board of Supervisors’ Office and is attached to these minutes.) 



Page 7 of 10 

 

 
B.  Approval of the Board of Supervisors' April 28, 2020 and May 5, 2020 

meeting minutes.  
 

C.  Approval of the Human Resources Department monthly activity 
reports for April 2020.  
 

APRIL 7, 2020 
 
DEPARTURES: 

1. Jolene Myers - Clerk of Superior Court - Temporary Court Clerk - 03/27/20 
- General Fund - DOH 12/23/19 

2. Vicki DeAnda - Finance - Accounting Associate - 05/10/20 - General Fund - 
DOH 01/29/97 
 

NEW HIRES: 
3. Filomeno Butierez IV - Administrative Services - Administrative Clerk - 

04/06/20 - General Fund - Replacing Ashlyn Earven 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

4. Alyxx Hartmann - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer - 04/08/20 - General 
Fund 
5. Kyle Parker - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 04/08/20 - General Fund 

 
APRIL 14, 2020 

 
NEW HIRES: 
1. Derek Riggs - Library District - IT Support Specialist - 04/27/20 - Library 

Assistance Fund - Replacing Thomas French 
2. Lori White - Sheriff's Office - Nurse - 04/20/20 - General Fund - Replacing 
Penni Padgett 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

3. Veronica Hernandez - Health and Emergency Services - Community Health 
Specialist - 04/14/20 - WIC Fund 
4. Steven Jenson - Assessor's Office - Chief Deputy Assessor - 03/19/20 - 

General Fund 
5. Rebecca Taft - Assessor's Office - Property Appraiser II - 12/10/19 - General 

Fund 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

6. Penni Padgett - Sheriff's Office - From Nurse - To Detention Medical Director 
(underfill) - 04/13/20 - General Fund - Replacing Richard Hobson 
 

OTHER ACTIONS: 



Page 8 of 10 

 

7. David Luhm - Computer Services - IT Support Specialist - 04/13/20 - 
General Fund - Salary correction 

8. Gabriel Scales - Computer Services - IT Systems Administrator - 04/13/20 - 
General Fund - Salary correction 

 
APRIL 21, 2020 
 

DEPARTURES: 
1. Jenny Shults - Public Works - Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator - 
04/09/20 - Public Works Fund - DOH 02/04/19 

 
NEW HIRES: 

2. Ruben Duarte - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer - 04/27/20 - General 
Fund - Replacing Bret McDaniel 
3. Dennis Pool - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer - 04/27/20 - General Fund - 

Replacing Andrew Madrid 
 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
4. Andrea Cullen - Health and Emergency Services - Community Health 
Specialist - 05/18/20 - WIC Fund  

5. Nicole Barrett - Health and Emergency Services - Administrative Clerk 
Senior - 04/28/20 - Health Service Fund 
6. Tammie Mounce - Administrative Services - Administrative Clerk - 02/05/20 

- General Fund 
7. Amanda Frost - Public Works - Scalehouse Attendant - 05/11/20 - Recycling 

and Landfill Management Fund  
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

8. Griselda Ruiz - Globe Justice Court - From Justice Court Clerk - To Justice 
Court Clerk Senior - 04/27/20 - General Fund - Replacing Karrie Powers 
9. David Kell - Sheriff's Office - From Detention Officer Sgt. - To Detention 

Officer - 04/17/20 - General Fund - Replacing Marcus Teague Jr.  
 

OTHER ACTIONS: 
10. Jeff Baer - Computer Services/School Superintendent's Office - IT and 
School Systems Administrator - 04/13/20 - General Fund - Salary correction 

11. Scott Albretsen - Finance/Computer Services - IT Systems Administrator - 
04/13/20 - General Fund - Salary correction 

12. Michael Dixon - Public Works - Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic - 
04/28/20 - Public Works Fund - Extending probationary period an additional 
three months 

13. Raymond Fulton - Sheriff's Office - Special Investigator(.75) - 04/03/20 - 
From General Fund - To General(.75)/Drug Gang Violent Crime(.25) Funds - 
Special assignment 



Page 9 of 10 

 

14. Mark Highstreet II - Sheriff's Office - From Deputy Sheriff - To Deputy 
Sheriff Task Force Detective - 04/03/20 - From General Fund - To Drug Gang 

Violent Crime Fund - Special assignment 
 

APRIL 28, 2020 
 
DEPARTURES: 

1. Ruben Duarte - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer - 04/27/20 - General 
Fund - DOH 04/27/20 
2. Mark Guerena - Public Works - County Engineer - 05/15/20 - Public Works 

Fund - DOH 10/15/07 
3. Robert Hickman - Facilities and Land Management - Interim Facilities 

Management Director - 05/22/20 - Facilities Management Fund - DOH 
08/11/97 
 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
4. Courtney White - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer - 04/29/20 - General 

Fund 
5. Isom White - Recorder's Office - Recorder's Clerk - 05/25/20 - General Fund 
6. Elizabeth Lopez - Recorder's Office - Recorder's Clerk - 05/25/20 - General 

Fund 
7. Stephanie Johnson - Recorder's Office - Recorder's Clerk - 05/25/20 - 
General Fund 

8. Tiffany Brown-Cocroft - Community Services - Permit Technician - 04/14/20 
- General Fund 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
9. Michael Teitsworth - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer - 05/20/20 - General 

Fund - Extending probationary period an additional six months 
 
REQUEST TO POST: 

10. Facilities and Land Management - Facilities Management Director - 
Vacated by Robert Hickman 

 
D.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the month of April 
2020.  

 
Approve demands and budget amendments for operating transfers.  Warrant 

numbers 302418 through 302602, and 302604 through 302781 totaling 

$3,367,374.56 for the period 04-01-20 through 04-30-20.  

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-217(C), the published minutes shall include all 

demands and warrants approved by the Board in excess of one thousand 

dollars except that multiple demands and warrants from a single supplier or 



Page 10 of 10 

 

individual under one thousand dollars whose cumulative total exceeds one 

thousand dollars in a single reporting period shall also be published.  (A 

listing of issued warrants and voided warrants is permanently attached to 

these minutes.) 

 
E.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 

approved by the County Manager for the month of April 2020.  
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Humphrey, 

the Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda items 5A-5E. 
 

Item 6 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 

may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 

conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 

matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date. 
 

There weren’t any public comments. 
 

Item 7 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 

on the information presented. 
 

Supervisors Martin and Cline and the County Manager presented a summary 
of current events.   
 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Cline adjourned the meeting at 12:06 p.m. 
 

 
APPROVED: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



   
ARF-6046   Consent Agenda Item     3. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/02/2020  
Reporting
Period:

April 2020

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Esther Canez, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for April 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the April 2020 monthly activity report submitted by
the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerks Report - April 2020



















   
ARF-6054   Consent Agenda Item     3. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/02/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Constable's office Monthly Report for
April 2020

Submitted For: Ruben Mancha, Globe Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Michael Sellars, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable's office Monthly Report for April 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the April 2020 monthly activity report submitted by
the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
April 2020

















   
ARF-6053   Consent Agenda Item     3. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/02/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
April 2020

Submitted For: Tony McDaniel, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for April 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the April 2020 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
April 2020



























   
ARF-6077   Consent Agenda Item     3. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/02/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Monthly Report for April 2020

Submitted For: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr. 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr.

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for April 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the April 2020 monthly activity report submitted by
the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Monthly Report for April 2020









   
ARF-6078   Consent Agenda Item     3. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/02/2020  
Reporting
Period:

April 2020

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region 
Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of  Peace's Office Monthly Report for April 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the April 2020 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
April 2020





Limited Jurisdiction Courts
Misdemeanor, Criminal And Civil Traffic Caseload Summary By Charge

PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT - 404

START DATE : 4/1/2020          END DATE :4/30/2020

Misdemeanor Criminal and 
Civil Traffic
Caseload Summary by 
Charge

INCOMING OUTGOING

Column ID 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

LIN
E ID

CASE TYPE New Filing
& Transfers In

Reopened Reactivated
Total Charges 

Incoming
Entry of 

Judgment
Default 

Judgment
Reopened

Terminations
Placed on 
Inactive 
Status

Total Charges 
Outgoing 

Section - 1 Misdemeanor

Person

A Person-Sex Offenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Person-Kidnapping 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

C Person-Aggravated Assaults 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

D Person-Other Assaults 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0

Property

E Property-Burglary 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

F Property-Auto Theft 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

G Property-Other 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 3

Other

H Drug Possession/Paraphernalia 7 0 0 7 8 0 0 0 8

I Weapons 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

J Public Order 7 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 0

K Interfering With Judicial 
Proceedings

1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0

L Failure to 
Appear/Misd&CrimTraffic

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

5/20/2020 1:57:27 PM Page 1 of 6



M Petty Offenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

N Other 11 0 0 11 7 0 0 0 7

Section - 2 Criminal Traffic

DUI

A Motor Vehicle 6 0 0 6 4 0 0 0 4

B Extreme Motor Vehicle 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

C Boating/Flying 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Serious Violations

D Leaving the Scene 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0

E Reckless Driving 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

F Racing on Highway 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

G All Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other Violations

H Criminal Speed 1 0 0 1 3 0 0 0 3

I All Other 4 2 3 9 8 0 2 0 10

Section - 3 CivilTraffic

A Driver License 2 1 0 3 3 4 1 0 8

B Registration 2 4 0 6 3 3 4 0 10

C Insurance 7 3 0 10 8 7 3 0 18

D Speeding 72 23 0 95 68 21 23 0 112

E Excessive Speeding 31 8 0 39 62 28 8 0 98

F Red Light 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0

G Seat Belt 4 1 0 5 9 11 1 0 21

H State DPS Photo Enforcement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

I Other Civil Traffic 7 0 0 7 8 6 0 0 14

Section - 4 Local - Non 
Criminal Ordinances

5/20/2020 1:57:27 PM Page 3 of 6



A Parking 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Non-Parking 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Section - 5 Felony

A Total Felony 24 0 2 26 22 0 0 1 23

 GRAND TOTAL 192 42 5 239 221 80 42 1 344

Section - 6 Domestic Violence

A Felony-Domestic Violence 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Misdemeanor-Domestic 
Violence

6 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0

Section - 7 Special Case 
Characteristics

A Self Represented Litigants 166 42 3 211 182 80 42 1 305

B Interpreter Services Provided 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5/20/2020 1:57:27 PM Page 5 of 6



Limited Jurisdiction Courts
Civil Caseload Summary Report
PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT - 404
START DATE : 4/1/2020          END DATE : 4/30/2020

Column ID 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

LINE 
ID

CASE TYPE Begin Pending
New Filing Transfer In Reopened Reactivated

Terminations
Placed on 

Inactive Status
Statistical Correction

Active Inactive Entry of Judgment Reopened Active

Section - 1 Civil

A Small Claims 18 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Forcible Detainer / Eviction Action 2 0 3 0 0 0 3 0 0

C Tort 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

D Contract 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

E Debt-Seller Plaintiff 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

F Other Civil 104 1 4 0 0 0 10 0 0

G Total Civil Complaints 126 1 9 0 0 0 13 0 0

Section - 2 Domestic Violence & 
Harassment Petitions

A Civil Emergency Order of Protection 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Civil Order of Protection 17 0 9 0 1 0 9 0 0

C Injunction Against Harassment 29 0 9 0 2 0 9 0 0

D Injunction Against Workplace 
Harassment

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Section - 3 Special Case 
Characteristics

A Self Represented Litigants 173 1 27 0 3 0 31 0 0

B Interpreter Provided 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5/20/2020 2:23:52 PM



11 12 13

Statistical Correction End Pending

Inactive Active Inactive

20 0

2 0

0 0

2 0

0 0

98 1

122 1

0 0

18 0

31 0

1 0

172 1

0 0

5/20/2020 2:23:52 PM



5/20/2020 2:23:52 PM



5/20/2020 2:23:52 PM



   
ARF-6080   Consent Agenda Item     3. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/02/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Recorder's Office Monthly Report for April 2020

Submitted For: Sadie Bingham, Recorder 
Submitted By: Charlotte Williams, Chief Deputy Recorder

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for April 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the April 2020 monthly activity report submitted by
the Recorder's Office.

Attachments
Recorder's April 2020 Monthly Report




















	Agenda
	AZ State Parks and Trails OHV Law Enforcement Equipment Gila County Sheriff's Office Grant Application 
	Att1_Grant Application 
	Att2_Application submitted email
	Att3_Road Condition Photos
	Att4_Letters of support 
	Gila County Courts' Field Trainer Application for FY21
	Att1_FY21 Field Trainer Application
	Adopt Resolution No. 20-06-01 designating Turner Hill Road in Young, Arizona, as a primitive road.
	Att1_Resolution No. 20-06-01
	Att2_Docket 179, Pg. 441
	Att3_Docket 302, Pg. 746
	Att4_Exhibit A
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Contract awards for transport services IFB 040320
	Att1_Request to Advertise
	Att2_Notice of Invitation for Bids
	Att3_IFB 040320
	Att4_IFB 040320 Bid Results
	Att5_IFB 040320 Bid Analysis
	Att6_IFB 040320 Sign in Sheet
	Att7_Contract 040320-A ATO ZEN
	Att8_Contract 040320-B Lamont
	Att9_Addendum No. 1 to Notice Of Invitation for Bids No. 040320
	Advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 050420 - Pharmacy Services for Gila County Detention Medical
	Att1_Request to Advertise
	Att2_RFP No. 050420
	Comment Letter Revision to the Nonessential Experimental Population of the Mexican Wolf EIS
	Att1_Comment Letter - Mexican Wolf
	Pleasant Valley Community Councel, Inc.- Special Event Liquor License Application
	Att1_Pleasant Valley Community Center - Application
	BOS May 12, 2020 and May 19, 2020 BOS Meeting Minutes
	Att1_05-12-20 Meeting Minutes
	Att2_05-19-20 Meeting Minutes
	April 2020
	Att1_Clerks Report - April 2020
	Globe Regional Constable's office Monthly Report for April 2020
	Att1_April 2020
	Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for April 2020
	Att1_April 2020
	Monthly Report for April 2020
	Att1_Monthly Report for April 2020
	April 2020
	Att1_April 2020
	march 202 treas.pdf
	jp0404 april criminal.pdf
	j0404 April 2020 civil

	Recorder's Office Monthly Report for April 2020
	Att1_Recorder's April 2020 Monthly Report

